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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2020.
Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2020 was
HK$51,251,000 (2019: HK$55,944,000), a decrease of HK$4,693,000
or 8.39% compared to the year before. The loss for the year amounted
to HK$56,650,000 (2019: profit for the year of HK$58,014,000),
representing a decrease of HK$114,664,000 from 2019. The decrease in
profit for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020 was mainly the results of:

1. a share of loss of associates of HK$69,029,000 in current year
compared with a share of profit of associates of HK$8,967,000 in last
year; and

2. a fair value loss of investment properties of HK$32,635,000 in
current year compared with a fair value gain of investment properties
of HK$9,128,000 in last year.

Loss per share amounted to HK4.57 cents (2019: earnings per share of
HK4.67 cents), while the net asset value per share was HK$3.50 as at
31st December, 2020 (2019: HK$3.57).

Dividend
No Dividend
The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) does not recommend the

payment of a dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2020 (2019
interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend): HK2.5 cents per share).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“2021 AGM")

The 2021 AGM is scheduled to be held on Monday, 17th May, 2021.
For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
12th May, 2021 to Monday, 17th May, 2021 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order for a shareholder to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 11th May, 2021.

Management Discussion and Analysis
Business Review

The Group’s core businesses comprise property investment, property
leasing and estate management in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Group's commercial
properties situated at Harbour Crystal Centre recorded an average
occupancy level of approximately 98%, but the performance of rental
income was not so good as expected. Following the coronavirus pandemic
in Hong Kong, retail business in Harbour Crystal Centre was seriously
affected. As a result, the Group has granted rent concession in average
around 50% of the original rents to some tenants depending on the trades
and mandatory closure period of premises since January 2020 resulting a
decrease in rental income from Harbour Crystal Centre.

In respect of the residential properties held by the associate (33.33%
owned) situated at The Redhill Peninsula, 2 houses were sold and 5
houses were completed for the year ended 31st December, 2020 where
3 houses will be completed in 2021. The remaining 31 houses are being
launched for lease and sale in batches in the year of 2021.

The Group's industrial properties situated at Ap Lei Chau, Hong Kong,
the Harbour Industrial Centre and the Oceanic Industrial Centre held by
the associate (33.33% owned) recorded an average occupancy level of
approximately 58% and the rental income was performed moderately.

5
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Financial Review
Group Assets and Charges

The total assets of the Group have decreased from HK$4,658,964,000
last year to HK$4,544,502,000 in this year. The net assets of the Group
have decreased from HK$4,436,589,000 to HK$4,345,919,000. At
31st December, 2020, no investment properties of the Group in Hong
Kong (2019: Nil) were pledged as security for banking facilities. The Group
has no bank loan, but will undergo a discussion with the bank for the
renewal of banking facilities and the bank has agreed to provide banking
facilities if necessary.

Group Financial Position, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The total liabilities of the Group have decreased from HK$222,375,000
as at 31st December, 2019 to HK$198,583,000 as at 31st December,
2020. The Group had cash and bank balances of HK$186,175,000 as at
31st December, 2020 (2019: HK$217,031,000). The ratio of total
liabilities to total assets was approximately 4.37% (2019: 4.77%). As at
31st December, 2020, the Group had no bank loans (2019: Nil) and the
total equity was HK$4,345,919,000 (2019: HK$4,436,589,000).

As at 31st December, 2020, the current assets of the Group, amounting to
HK$445,823,000 (2019: HK$365,512,000), exceeded its current liabilities
by HK$4 14,089,000 (2019: HK$313,230,000).

For the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Group had no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and no related hedges and there
were no contingent liabilities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Financial/Operational Key Performance Indicators
Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

For the year of 2020, the Group set the following operational KPIs to
maintain high competitiveness:

(1) For the investment properties managed by the Group, our aim is to
maintain the same as last year in the total rental income.

(2) For the sale of The Redhill Peninsula Project held by the associate
(33.339% owned), our aim is to sell one house quarterly.

Having reviewed the annual performance, these KPIs cannot be achieved
due to the Coronavirus outbreak. The Group will keep updating its
operational KPIs and sale/leasing strategy to adapt the market changes.

Future Likely Development
Objectives for 2021 are as follows:

(1)  We will continue to improve our investment portfolio through
acquisition of quality properties at attractive valuations and disposals
of under-performing properties in order to balance the demands of
short-term returns and long-term capital appreciation.

(2) We will be more proactive in forming the strategy for the sale and
leasing of the remaining houses in The Redhill Peninsula held by the
associate (33.33% owned).

(3) We will review our management system and cost structure so as to
improve efficiency and reduce expenses where possible.

(4) We will consider gearing up our projects in a responsible manner in
order to increase our return on equity.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
COVID-19 Pandemic Response
From early 2020 the Group took steps to protect the health and safety of

our workforce, their families, local suppliers and neighbouring communities
while ensuring a safe environment for operations to continue as usual. For

example:
. measures to maximize social distancing and staff protection within
the offices;

. meetings held off-site or by conference calls or video conference as
far as possible;

. cancellation of all non-essential travel;

. flexible and remote working plans for employees;

. restrictions on office access and temperature screening;

. self-isolation following travel, development of symptoms, or
interaction with a confirmed case of COVID-19 and requirement to
undergo a coronavirus test as and when necessary at the Company's

cost; and

. increased inventory of face mask, hand sanitiser and hygiene supplies
and increased focus on cleaning and sanitation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Business Outlook

We expect the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic will significantly dampen
the demand for the Group's retail space in Harbour Crystal Centre (portion)
for much of 2021 as travel restrictions are expected to be in place for
some time. The major negative impact will be on the depressed number
of visitors from the mainland, who historically have been a key target of our
retail tenants.

The roll-out of the vaccine programme should help stabilise the retail
business by the summer, and we are hopeful that there will be some
relaxation of travel restrictions at least with mainland China. In the
meantime, the Company will continue to work with our retail occupants to
restructure lease terms and offer rental concessions as needed.

The residential market has seen early signs of recovering due to pent-
up demand and hopes of a post-COVID economic recovery. There have
been several new luxury residential developments that have had successful
launches and we expect the relative value offered by the Group's joint
venture project Redhill Peninsula will attract more site inspections by
potential buyers. The key to more sales, however, will still be the relaxation
of travel restrictions as most of our buyers have strong links to the
mainland.

We are aware that the current difficult trading environment may well result
in some attractive investment opportunities. The Group will continue to
actively evaluate these opportunities as potential acquisitions for long-term
holdings.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and the
staff for their diligence and contributions to the Group in the past year, to
the Shareholders for their understanding and support, and to the customers
for their trust.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2021
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
as at 31st December, 2020

BEREmER
(FEFR)

Total gross HfI FrisE St
ek I B SRS i floor area Car parking Percentage
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned
BrEME
Investment properties
S
Hong Kong
BP0 (F) NEEIHER GES 138,663 - 80

BB A SR AR I B £ 38 10057 106005 8,881 - 40
Harbour Crystal Centre (portion) K.LL. 10600 Commercial 30 100
100 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon
AETE DO (E5) WEIMAME — IEEE 266,126 59 33.33
EREBEBF 116%%
RS FALN
Harbour Industrial Centre (portion) AlLL116 Industrial/
Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen, Godown
Hong Kong
ETEHOGEMD) BSHIMN A ER I% /87 741,706 74 33.33
EEEBT 1165%
iyl
Oceanic Industrial Centre (portion) AlL116 Industrial/
Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen, Godown
Hong Kong
T/a L (R D) MHER22435%  AEMAE 27,457 - 50
BB 2R
ERAKBHR58-645%
Queen’s Centre (portion) I.L.2243R.P. Commercial/
58-64 Queen's Road East, Offices

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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FEPEFTHEHGE) PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (continued)
Ro-E-—FF+=—H=1—H as at 3 1st December, 2020
HEEER
(FHR)

Total gross HfI Frid a5t
ek I B SRS i floor area Car parking Percentage
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned
FEIRTRAE(BD) SHYE MR S 134,236 10 50

JUREHIE 2958
HEEAH
Wah Shun Industrial Building (portion) Y.T.IL29 Industrial

4 Cho Yuen Street,
Yau Tong, Kowloon

LB E—H(EM B[R M R T= 10,427 - 33.33
EENE 1050%%

The Redhill Peninsula, Phase 1 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential
Tai Tam, Hong Kong

AL EE—HE) MREEER — EE 98,250 - 33.33
BEERE 10508

The Redhill Peninsula, Phase 2 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential
Tai Tam, Hong Kong

AL S EMEA(ER ) B[ 2 ELdh E] By - 106 33.33
BERE 1050%%

The Redhill Peninsula, Phase 4 (Portion) R.B.L.1050 Car Parking

Tai Tam, Hong Kong Spaces
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The board of directors of
the Company (“Board") believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”), the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption of the various enhanced procedures which
are detailed in this report. The Company has applied the principles of, and
complied with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the
year ended 3 1st December, 2020, except for certain deviations as specified
with considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board
will review the current practices at least annually, and make appropriate
changes if considered necessary.

The Board

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”) in total, with
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors
("INEDs"). The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date
of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman)
Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive)
Edwin Lo King Yau

Tao Tsan Sang

INEDs:

Li Chak Hung
Choi Kin Man
Lisa Yang Lai Sum

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in the Directors’
Report on pages 49 to 51. There are no family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process

During the year, the INEDs provided the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group's strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests of
all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company has
had three INEDs representing not less than one-third of the Board. At
least one of the INEDs has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his/her independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results and other ad hoc matters
which need to be dealt with. During the year, four Board meetings were
held and the individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and general
meeting during the year ended 31st December, 2020 are set out below:

HEBTERZRY
Number of meetings attended/held
FHZERE FNERE BRAE
EF®  Remuneration Audit General
EEfs® Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
BiTESE: Executive Directors:
FHE(EE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman) 4/4 0/1
FHB(TTEER) Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive) 4/4 1/1
B Edwin Lo King Yau 4/4 1/1
fig< s Tao Tsan Sang 4/4 1/1
BIUERTES: INEDs:
TES Li Chak Hung 4/4 1/1 2/2 1/1
FRER Choi Kin Man 4/4 1/1 1/2 1/1
BE% Lisa Yang Lai Sum 4/4 1/1 22 0/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process (continued)

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual operating budget, annual and
interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment or re-appointment
(based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day responsibility to the executive management under the instruction/
supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms
of reference. The respective functions of the Board and management of the
Company have been formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed
and updated by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are
consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying Board
papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other
Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles
of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate
that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director
or any of his/her close associates has a material interest.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process (continued)

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the Company's senior management. Directors will be continuously
updated on the major development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written procedure has
been established since August 2017 to enable the Directors, in discharge
of their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’

RABEIRBE R 2 X MB I - BELHE Y attendance at meetings and review of papers and circulars sent by the
EBEIEWT ¢ management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:

BHGSRERBRED
Participation in Continuous
Professional Development Activities

HEREEREARZ

H e R

Attending trainings/

REESEN briefings/seminars/

Reading conference relevant to

EREMRE Name of Directors Regulatory Updates Directors’ duties
BiESR: Executive Directors:

FRIE(ERE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman) v v/

FRIB (TTH#EE) Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive) v v

Bt Edwin Lo King Yau v v

HEE Tao Tsan Sang v v

BIIERITES : INEDs:

B3 Li Chak Hung v v

g2ER Choi Kin Man v/ v

HER Lisa Yang Lai Sum v v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in August 2017
which sets out the objectives and principles regarding board diversity for
the purpose of achieving the Company's strategic objectives of balanced
diversity at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be
based on merit and candidates will be considered against measurable
objectives, taking into account the Company's business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board.

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive (“CE") should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, being the Chairman of
the Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring
that (i) all significant policy issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner; (ii) all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings; and (iii) all Directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information. The functions of the CE are performed by Mr. Lee Shu
Yin, the Chief Executive of the Company, who is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group's business. Their responsibilities are clearly
segregated and have been set out in writing and approved by the Board in
August 2017, and subsequently updated in January 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from
the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment. This
induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction package includes materials
briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be
continuously updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep
of good corporate governance practices.

All INEDs of the Company were appointed for a specific term, but subject to
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable
laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible
for re-election. The term of appointment of the INEDs has been renewed
for further two years commencing from 1st January, 2021.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company whilst for
those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible
for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and

has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions in August 2017.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions

include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v) reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination
Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and an
Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of
reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required to report back to
the Board on their decisions and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in
the section headed “The Board” of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012
and is chaired by an INED and comprises all INEDs. Currently, the
Nomination Committee consists of three members, including Mr. Li Chak
Hung (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and
Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered
necessary. The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are
included in its terms of reference, which was revised in August 2017 and
January 2019 and are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee has formulated and set out the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) in its terms of reference. The objective of
the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. To ensure changes to the Board composition can
be managed without undue disruption, a formal, considered and transparent
procedure is in place for selection, appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of
a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and
when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision
by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities. Further
details of the selection criteria and the procedure are set out in the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. In 2020, no Nomination Committee meeting was held
while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation.
In 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the proposed
resolutions for re-election of the retiring Directors at 2020 AGM and
2021 AGM;

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the renewal of
the terms of appointment of the INEDs for two years commencing
from 1st January, 2021; and

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and assessed the independence of each INED.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since September
2005 and currently consists of three members, including Mr. Choi Kin Man
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Ms.
Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access
to independent professional advice according to the Company's policy if
considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are included in its terms of reference, which was revised in
August 2017 and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance
with the code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, but with a deviation
from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors only and not senior management (as opposed to
executive directors and senior management under the code provision). The
reasons for the above deviation are summarised as below:

(i)  the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly
in a position to evaluate the performance of senior management
and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out by the
Executive Directors;

(i) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to control their
compensation; and

(i) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus Shareholders will benefit by
reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. One Remuneration Committee meeting was
held in 2020 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “The Board" of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2020. In
2020 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the existing
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

(i) reviewed the remuneration packages of all the Executive Directors
and INEDs for the year ended 31st December, 2019;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the bonus for
the year ended 31st December, 2019 and the salary for the year
2020 of the CE;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the Directors’
fee for the year 2020; and

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the services
fees and the renewal of terms of appointment of the INEDs.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director's fee. Further remuneration
payable to Directors (including any service fees of the INEDs) for their
additional responsibilities and services will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service contracts
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements whereas detailed changes in the
emoluments of certain Directors during the interim period and up to the
date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim Report of the
Company dated 20th August, 2020. Details of the remuneration policy
of the Group are also set out in the “Employee” section contained in the
Directors’ Report on page 56.



DRBEARAT —S-TFEFRH

ERELWEWR)

1
i

=L B2
EEES

BERZBEGE-NNNFAAKRYL - BRIA=%
B FFMITESAK - RRFBILMERFTEML -
ERZEem R ARAEEXERA G M
MY BEREENBCBUENTESELT
& BERERBEZRAEKERFTEELLE(BRE
Bg1E) ZRRELNMGERLZL - BRZEER
SRIEHANERABITHERET » YARARF]
CHEREAFERSRBIEXESR - BXZEE8
gZIEACRBROCEENEBERERN &
BESECRB XM AR R RIS

ERZEG CRERERTEELE] - LET
PEERTAZFRNEXC3.3 - MR Z TR
EEZZEEZRETMAMRSE

()  EITZREBINEAZ BAM IR (I BUIR 7% 2 X
&®

(i) EREEECETHBEZYAMZARE
B R AEREIERAR K

(i) FERABPESNSZEEN 2 TIER R - 1
AHERNEEA B EAEREE I
BELEMRABNEREE 2T -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since September 1998 and
currently consists of three INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity,
the Audit Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the
Company's policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions
of the Audit Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time to
time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with
deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s responsibility
to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to
supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure the management has performed its duty to have effective risk
management and internal control systems; and

(i) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the listed company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as
opposed to implement under the code provision) the policy on the
engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for the
following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(i)  the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such
policy and recommendations is through the Executive Directors and
management; and

(i) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow
up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses
the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure under the code
provision) whether management has performed its duty to have effective
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee is not
equipped to ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-
to-day supervision and the employment of permanent experts. The Audit
Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly,
the Audit Committee is not in a position to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced but it can check whether it is adequately
resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with
its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee meetings were held in 2020
and the attendance of each member is set out in the section headed “The
Board" of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2020. In 2020 and up
to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the works as
summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor in respect of the interim results review for the six
months ended 30th June, 2020 (“2020 Interim Review") and the
final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2020 (“2020 Final
Audit”) of the Group;

(i)  reviewed the audit completion reports from the external auditor and
the management's response in relation to the final audit for the year
ended 31st December, 2019, 2020 Interim Review and 2020 Final
Audit;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the financial
reports for the year ended 31st December, 2019, for the six months
ended 30th June, 2020 and for the year ended 31st December,
2020 together with the relevant management representation letters
and announcements;

(iv) reviewed the internal audit plan and the internal audit reports
prepared by the Internal Audit Function of the Group (“IA Function”);

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the updated
reports on substantiation of the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget;

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual review the
Whistle Blower Policy, Procedures for the Identification and Monitoring
of Connected Transactions, Related Party Transaction Policies and
Procedures, Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information and Policy
on Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Control Procedures;
and

(vii) reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual review the
Group's risk management and internal control systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since July 2017 and
currently consists of four Executive Directors, being Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng
Wei (Chairman of the Executive Committee), Lee Shu Yin, Edwin Lo King
Yau and Tao Tsan Sang. The Executive Committee is vested with all the
general powers of management and control of the activities of the Group as
are vested in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved for the
Board's decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the
operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by way of
circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for undertaking
and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i)  to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group as
determined by the Board.

Company Secretary

Ms. Cynthia Chen Si Ying is the Company Secretary of the Company. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board governance
matters, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with the
Shareholders and management.

Ms. Chen is a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
During the year, Ms. Chen undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update her skills and knowledge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in the
securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Finance Department, the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2020, the accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe
that they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and have ensured that the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 59 to 65.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. In 2020,
the Board, through the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk
of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s agreed
objectives and goals. They have a key role in the management of risks
that are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition, they
should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting records
and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Systems and procedures are put in place to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks of different businesses and activities. The annual assessment
is performed through the completion by the relevant business units and
department heads of their respective responsibility statements as co-
ordinated by the IA Function. The result and findings are reported to the
Chairman of Executive Committee who puts forward the same to the
Audit Committee and the Board for review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, which have been considered
effective and adequate.

A discussion of the policies and procedures on the management of each of
the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included in note 29(b)
to the consolidated financial statements and under “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” section contained in Directors’ Report on pages 44 to 45.

Internal Audit

The Head of IA Function reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
Audit Committee. The IA Function generally carries out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit plan and internal audit report were prepared by the IA
Function and issued to the Audit Committee and the Board for review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information
("Policy”) effective on 1st January, 2013, and subsequently updated in
August 2017, with respect to the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Policy sets out
guidelines and procedures to the Directors and relevant officers of the
Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated
to the public on an equal basis and in timely manner. Directors and
relevant officers in possession of potential inside information and/or inside
information are required to take reasonable measures to ensure that proper
safeguards are in place to preserve strict confidentiality of inside information
and to ensure that its recipients recognise their obligations to maintain the
information confidential. The Policy shall be updated and revised as and
when necessary in light of changes in circumstances and changes in the
Listing Rules, Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements from time to time.

External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group's external auditor is set
out as follows:

A REE 2 R Services rendered for the Group H;/fg_g
ZH AR TS Audit services 1,258
IRERTS (BIERMP BEEREEN) Non-audit services (including review of interim results

and results announcements) 327
FEE Total 1,585
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate information
and news are also made available on the website of the Company.

The Company's AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with Shareholders. The Chairman actively participates at the
AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions from
Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence, another
member of the respective committees or failing that their respective duly
appointed delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairman of any independent board committee formed as necessary
or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is appointed, at
least a member of the independent board committee) should also be
available to answer questions at any general meeting of Shareholders to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval.

During the year, the 2020 AGM was held on 20th May, 2020. The
attendance record of the Directors at the 2020 AGM is set out in the
section headed “The Board” of this report.

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei (“Mr. Lee”, the Chairman of the Board), due to
other business engagements, was unable to attend the 2020 AGM resulting
in a deviation from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. Despite his
absence, Mr. Lee had reviewed all the documents and procedures of the
2020 AGM before the meeting, and all records and minutes of the 2020
AGM have been circulated to Mr. Lee after the meeting for information.
Moreover, Mr. Lee Shu Yin, the Chief Executive of the Company, who
attended and chaired the meeting as Mr. Lee's delegate in the Board, and
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees were
present thereat and were available to answer questions to ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation of the
detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders
at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions
from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll results are
published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings as at the date
of deposit of the requisition can request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") by sending a written request to the
registered office of the Company (“Registered Office”). Such requisition
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the EGM
and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. Besides,
Shareholders may make a proposal (“Proposal”) at a Shareholders’
meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board at the Registered
Office in accordance with the Companies Ordinance and the Articles
of Association where applicable. The Proposal shall be in the form of a
proposed resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the Proposal
for discussion and be relevant to the Company's business scope.

The Board updated a shareholders’ communication policy in August
2017. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered
Office for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the
nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy effective on 1st January,
2019. The Company's Dividend Policy aims at providing reasonable and
sustainable returns to its Shareholders whilst maintaining a position of
financial stability which allows the Company to take advantage of any
investment and expansion opportunities that may arise from time to time.

The Board may declare or propose dividends on an annual basis and/or
may declare interim dividends or special dividends. Proposal or declaration
of dividends by the Board is subject to consideration of the Company's and
the Group's operating results, accumulated and future earnings, gearing,
liquidity position, capital commitment requirement and future expansion
plan as well as general economic conditions and external factors that may
have impact on the financial performance and position of the Company
and the Group. In addition, as the Company is a holding company, the
Board will also consider the dividends received from its subsidiaries and
associates as the ability to pay dividends by the Company is dependent on
the dividends received from those subsidiaries and associates.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will amend and/or
modify the dividend policy if necessary.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will
continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices
on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our
transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Approach and Strategy

Asiasec Properties Limited (“Company”) believes in delivering long term,
sustainable value creation to our shareholders. In doing so, we recognise
that the choices we make will have an impact on the communities in which
we carry on our business and we should ensure such impact is a positive
one. We are committed to contributing to the sustainable development of
society and the environment, and endeavour to embrace these principles
as part of our practice and governance. The Company has adopted a
Sustainability Policy in August 2017 which covers our principles in the area
of employment and labour practices, business integrity, the environment
and the community and we shall endeavour to embrace these principles
as part of our practice and governance to contribute to the sustainable
development of society and the environment.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Company's strategy and reporting in respect of Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") issues and has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, which are put in
place to identify, evaluate and manage the risks of different businesses
and activities, including the ESG-related risks. Based upon the assessments
made by the Company's senior management, subsidiaries’ respective
management and the external auditors, the Board considered that such
systems are effective and adequate.

This report outlines the Group's sustainability initiatives and selected Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs") that are material to the Group and its
stakeholders on ESG issues for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020. This
report supplements information disclosed elsewhere in this annual report,
and was approved by the Board on 18th March, 2021.

Reporting Scope

The subject areas and aspects are presented based on the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” ("ESG Guide") as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

33



34

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2020

B - tERELWEE)

2R R ES R

REBRE @ RERESIZEENAHEER
HBEANZRERMEGHED  UTRERRE R
SEMEBEARBBIREEE - REEEE
ZEREFNESRZ EwRERRIERF o Ff
FHEAEE  SHARHMBEBRREREE
IERNEL2RARELE REEHEZER

AIFE T 2B EE MEARGERUEREINMNT

EERAMERE
k&S (BEB7) &I - BREMIERERT.2
H 4 RRRE

PR (BEA) — 35

BREA(BEA) —MEZ - BRESUER
A2.1~A23

RERAAER(BEAZ) —MIFEE - BRESUE
1ZA3.

RIB(EEBT) —ARIEE - BERERUIEIEBI
EEEZE(EHEB2) —REE  BREEE
B2.3

BRNEN(EEBI) —RER - BREWUEE
B3.2

STAER(BEmBY) — R

HrEEEIE (EHBS) — M E
ERET(E®EB) —REE - BARENES
B6.2 * B6.4

HEIEE (EERS) —MIEHE

EXRRRZ AR ERE R E AR A
ERHE -

MNTIRE - @ REARBETREH AR
B HERERESIZIEX D EZS -

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

Materiality Assessment and Stakeholder Engagement

Amongst various environmental and social issues based on the ESG Guide
within the scope of sustainability, the below are the list of issues that are
considered to be material and relevant to the Group. The priorities are
set based on management's view as well as certain conclusions from
stakeholders’ engagement. We regularly engage key stakeholders in daily
operations through meetings, events, and other communications and
feedback channels. Based on management's view, the aspects and KPls
relevant for this report's disclosure are set out as follows:

Material and relevant issue
Anti-corruption (Aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2
Other relevant issues

Emissions (Aspect A1) general disclosure
Use of resources (Aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1, A2.3

The environment and natural resources (Aspect A3) general disclosure, KP!
A3.1

Employment (Aspect B1) general disclosure, KPI B1.1

Health and safety (Aspect B2) general disclosure, KPI B2.3

Development and training (Aspect B3) general disclosure, KPI B3.2
Labour standards (Aspect B4) general disclosure

Supply chain management (Aspect B5) general disclosure

Product responsibility (Aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2, B6.4

Community investment (Aspect B8) general disclosure

All other aspects of KPIs not mentioned above were concluded to be not
relevant for disclosure.

The following ESG issues are presented based on the classification of
provisions by the Stock Exchange’s ESG Guide.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

A.  Environmental Issues

The Group's Sustainability Policy encompasses our general approach
towards environmental issues. We endeavour to:

—  observe relevant laws and regulations and aim to go beyond
minimum requirements;

—  prevent/minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste;

- make efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials;

- minimise the impact of the Group’s activities on the environment and
natural resources; and

—  engage our staff, customers and partners to promote environmentally
sustainable business practices and constantly re-assess our processes
to minimise environmental impact.

This report does not include the disclosure of all the environmental KPls
as they are not considered material or relevant as a conclusion of our
stakeholders’ engagement as well as management's view. Instead, we
have discussed our general approach and effort to reduce the Group's
environmental footprint in various aspects.

Emissions (Aspect A1)

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities and direct
participating in construction works. Emissions produced are mostly on a
“second degree” basis as incurred during occasional business travels which
is infrequent. In line with our policy to minimise air and greenhouse gas
emissions, major operations are equipped with video conferencing facilities
to minimise the need for face to face meetings and keep business travelling
to @ minimum. There are no relevant laws and regulations applicable to our
business in this aspect.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

A.  Environmental Issues (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3)

We have adopted a series of internal control policies and procedures to
enhance the efficiency in consumption of resources including energy,
water and other paper. With only 29 staff across the Group, we consume
minimum amounts of electricity and paper and with the efficient use of
such, we hope to minimise our impact on the environment while we grow
our businesses. Water consumption is not material to our business as it
relates mainly to the personal consumption of our staff or for their personal
hygiene.

Environmental protection guidelines in relation to energy savings and
reduction in paper consumption are circulated to all staff at head office
and branches. For instance, staff are reminded to switch off lights and
equipment after work, during lunch break or during the time working
outside the office and wherever possible. Energy efficient office equipment
is always preferred in making purchase decisions. During 2020, the
Group's total electricity consumption was 18,705 kwh, a 15% reduction as
compared with 21,960 kwh in 2019.

Since March 2017, electronic board paper systems have been promoted
and implemented throughout the Group, allowing our directors of the
Company to access meeting papers online anytime, anywhere with the
use of portable electronic devices, improving Board efficiency whilst saving
papers.

For our major activities of property investment and property management
businesses, eco-friendly options are often considered and where possible/
appropriate are implemented in operations and maintenance works.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)
A.  Environmental Issues (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3) (continued)

These include:

—  to replace compact fluorescent lamps with LED lightings;

—  to replace traditional electrical lift systems with WWF system;

—  to use environmentally friendly refrigerant gases for air-conditioning
units selection;

—  to place recycling bins in the prominent place to encourage waste
separation awareness amongst our staff and customers;

- to carry out routine maintenance of lighting, air-conditioning and
water pipe systems to prevent the lost of natural resources;

- to replace air-cool with water-cool air-conditioning system;

- to use more economical and efficient method to reduce noise, dust
and debris for waterproofing repair and maintenance; and

—  to install water efficient taps in washrooms and promoting concepts
of water conservation to our customers.

Except for the above mentioned, the Group's business has no direct impact
on the environment and natural resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4)

The Company is substantially an investment holding company and with
subsidiaries involved in real estate, property leasing and management
services. Our people are our most important assets that drive the long-term
development and sustainability of the Company. The Group's policy on
employment is as follows:

—  observing relevant laws and regulations;

—  being an equal-opportunity employer, implementing fair practices
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare for our staff;

—  providing a safe, healthy and quality workplace and protecting
employees from occupational hazards;

- promoting a good work-life balance for staff;
—  investing in training and professional development of our staff for the
purpose of improving their knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work;

- maintaining an open dialogue with our staff, facilitating a transparent
two-way communication; and

- no child and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues (continued)

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4) (continued)

The Group’s employment of staff is subject to the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance. The Group has no known non-compliance with the above
relevant regulations.

Our compensation and benefits (including working hours, rest periods,
welfare) need to be competitive with other peers in the same sectors and
in general exceeds the minimum as required by the relevant regulations.
Owing to the nature of our businesses, work related injuries, occupational
health issues and the incurrence of child labour are not significant risk
factors.

The Group endeavours to provide a safe and pleasant working environment
for our staff. On top of this, well-being programmes such as those
promoting a good work-life balance are regularly offered to staff. Sudden
Cardiac Arrest is a leading cause of death, so in July 2019, the Group
organized the Press to shock — Save a life Public Access Defibrillation (PAD)
Training Course to our staff. By equipping our staff with knowledge and
skills to use the automatic external defibrillators (AEDs) which are placed
in buildings and public areas, we can save lives and improve the chain-of-
survival in our workplace or community.

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group employs a total of 29 (2019: 30)
staff in Hong Kong.
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B. Social Issues (continued)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues (continued)
Development and Training (Aspect B3)

The Group is committed to fostering a culture of continuous learning in
our organisation. Our employees are encouraged to pursue work-related
advanced studies and attend seminars and workshops to hone their
skills. We support our people by providing study subsidies to facilitate the
professional development of our employees. During 2020, staff training
across the Group amounted to 59.5 (2019: 99) hours in total.

Training hours breakdown
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues (continued)
Supply Chain Management (Aspect B5)

The Group's general business suppliers include providers of information
technology and communication, premises, legal and other business services
as well as vendors for office supplies. These are not considered to pose
significant social risks for our business and procurement decisions are
based on pricing, suitability as well as the general reputation of suppliers.

Product Responsibility (Aspect B6)

The Group is responsible for providing a quality, safe and healthy living and
working environment to the tenants and visitors of its leased properties. We
listen to our tenants’ feedback and make continuous progress to improve
our service quality. Daily site inspections are conducted and frequent
communications with our tenants are maintained with an aim to uphold a
high standard of service quality. During 2020, the complaint rate was low
and most of the complainants accepted or were satisfied with our replies.
The Group puts the best effort to response instantly to the problems and
complaints submitted by the tenants.

Anti-corruption (Aspect B7)

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption
and fraud, it has established a Whistle Blower Policy ("Policy") detailing
situations in which acceptance of advantages is allowed. Key principles
concerning prevention of bribery and channel for reporting suspected
cases are set out in the Policy. Employees are required to undertake their
adherence thereto. Besides, internal control activities are in place to detect
malpractices. Upon receipt of any reported issues, the management will
conduct investigation and handle them in the manner set out in the Policy.
During 2020, there were no known cases of non-compliance with the
above laws and regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues (continued)
Community Investment (Aspect B8)

We strive to excel for our customers and undertake the responsibility of a
good corporate citizen contributing to the community by encouraging our
staff to enroll in charity and social services.

In Hong Kong, we organized two staff events — “Skip-a-meal” in June 2020
and Mooncakes for Charity in September 2020. Funds raised from the
events have supported World Vision to provide food, health, nutrition and
livelihood assistance to children and families affected by climate change
in Somalia, South Sudan and Zimbabwe and the member social welfare
agencies supported by The Community Chest of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2020.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and details of its principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31st December, 2020 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities carried
out in Hong Kong. The breakdown by principal activities of the Group's
revenue and the contribution to profit before taxation for the year ended
31st December, 2020 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

Detailed review of the Group’s business is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement (“CS") on page 5. Future development of the Company’s
business is set out in the CS on page 7. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the CS on page 7.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk
management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated
to react to changes in market conditions and the Group's business strategy.
The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) reviews risk-
related policies and scrutinises that management has performed its duty
to have effective risk management and internal control systems necessary
for monitoring and controlling major risks arising from the Group's business
activities, changing external risks and the regulatory environment, and
reports to the Board on the above.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Financial Risk

Financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market risk
concerns that the value of an investment will change due to movements
in market factors and which can be further divided into interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. Credit risk is the risk of
losses arising from clients or counterparties failing to make payments as
contracted. Liquidity risk concerns that a given security or asset cannot be
traded readily in the market to prevent a loss or make the required profit.
Further discussion on financial risk management is outlined in note 29(b)
“Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated
financial statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is concerned with possible losses caused by inadequate or
failed internal processes, people, systems or external events. Operational
risk is mitigated and controlled through establishing robust internal controls,
setting out clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate
culture that the business and operating line management are fully aware of,
and responsible for, managing the operational risks of their business units
on a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted
by the Internal Audit Function of the Group which reports regularly to the
Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee.

Uncertainties

The Group's business and profitability growth in the year under review are
affected by the uncertainty of the property market. The supply and demand
of the properties, government interventions over the property market price,
house price indexes and interest rates change in Hong Kong may induce a
material adjustment on the Group's business, financial position and results.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally
responsible manner, the Group endeavours to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection legislated by the local
government for managing the properties.

The Group is also committed to building an eco-friendly corporation. It is the
Group's aim to reduce the impacts of its operations on the environment.
The environmental policies of the Group include minimising consumption
of paper and electricity, reducing waste and promoting the use of electronic
communication and storage.

Further information on the Group’s environmental issues also detailed in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 33 to 43.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.



DRBEARAT —S-TFEFRH

g
3
)
%
If
ﬁ@

mht

EPNEES)

ME

AEEZFEY N R A IRERE66 A NBEM 247
BB RAMTENA -

EEe BB EREE S -_TF+_-_A=+—
BIEtFEEZRE(ZZT—AEPHRE(REXRE
fE8) « BR2.581) °

RER - BB AR -
(e AR

RERRAFREERE - ARRWER] 7 RS
R AT BB B R R BT IR EAR
A R)RT AT 2 R BE B BN R R TARAD 2 1

2
AR

BRENEBE ARFUR(E RS - ARFBERER
BEMBHmAMEE27)5 - NEEBEIAEK -

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 66 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2020 (2019 interim dividend (in lieu of a final
dividend): HK2.5 cents per share).

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.
Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Borrowings
The Group does not have any borrowings apart from the amounts due to

associates which is interest-free and the details of which are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December, 2020,
calculated under part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622), amounted to HK$157,324,000 (2019: HK$92,776,000).

Properties

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 3 1st December, 2020 are
set out on pages 10to 11.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Lee Shu Yin

Edwin Lo King Yau
Tao Tsan Sang

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Li Chak Hung
Choi Kin Man
Lisa Yang Lai Sum

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), Messrs. Lee Shu Yin, Li Chak Hung and
Choi Kin Man shall retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

A list of names of all the directors who have served on the boards of
the Company's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this
report are available on the website of the Company under the “Corporate
Governance” section.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Executive Directors

Patrick Lee Seng Wei, aged 69, was appointed an Executive Director
of the Company in November 2016 and was the Chief Executive of the
Company during the period from December 2016 to January 2018.
Mr. Lee was appointed the Chairman of the Company in January 2018.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Being an
architect, he worked for IBM Australia before becoming involved in property
development in Malaysia and Hong Kong more than thirty years ago. He
has extensive experience in the property field. Mr. Lee is the managing
director and an executive director of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Lee Shu Yin, aged 54, has been the Chief Executive and an Executive
Director of the Company since January 2018. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over twenty years of experience in
corporate finance, investment and management. Mr. Lee served as Chief
Investment Officer of Grand River Properties Ltd. and as an executive of
PGR Asian RE Fund GP, Ltd., which managed a property-related investment
account of a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (“TACI"), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He is an independent non-executive director of Altus Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 8149). Mr. Lee was a Non-Executive Director of TACI during
the period from March 2011 to June 2017 and an Executive Director of
the same company from June 2017 to January 2018. He served various
positions as a vice president and director in the Asian Equities division of JP
Morgan Securities Limited/Robert Fleming Securities and as an executive
director of Goldman Sachs International in Hong Kong. He holds a Master's
Degree in Finance from the London Business School, and Bachelor of Arts
and Bachelor of Science Degrees from Stanford University. Mr. Lee is a
Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 60, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lo holds a Master's Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia and is a Chartered Secretary and a Chartered
Governance Professional. He had served various executive roles in several
companies in Hong Kong including as company secretary for public listed
companies. Mr. Lo is also an executive director of each of Allied Group
Limited and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Tao Tsan Sang, aged 56, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tao holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting,
financial management and China business field. Mr. Tao is an executive
director and the finance director of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Li Chak Hung, aged 56, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Li graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree of
Business Administration. Mr. Li is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has 30 years’ experience in
accounting, auditing, taxation and financial management. Mr. Li is currently
an independent non-executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 102), Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
482) and Alpha Professional Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 948) and was
an independent non-executive director of DreamEast Group Limited (Stock
Code: 593) from October 2004 to December 2019 and Alibaba Pictures
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1060) from September 2004 to June 2014,
whereas all companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Choi Kin Man, aged 61, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Choi graduated from Jinan
University holding a Bachelor's Degree in Journalism and from University
of South Australia with a Master's Degree in Business Administration. Mr.
Choi has 20 years of experience in the media and public relations industry,
and is currently the managing director of Shima & Co. Limited. Mr. Choi was
previously a director of Capital Communications Corp., and had participated
in a number of public relations and communications projects.

Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 54, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in March 2017. She graduated from the
University of Sydney with a Bachelor's Degree in Law and Economics and
is also qualified as a solicitor in Australia and England. She is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of ONC Lawyers. Ms. Yang is also
an independent non-executive director of each of Allied Group Limited and
Tian An China Investments Company Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company, and China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited.

Senior Management

Cynthia Chen Si Ying, aged 54, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. She joined the Company in April 2011. Ms. Chen holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration and a Master's Degree
in Corporate Governance. She is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and a fellow of The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). She has almost twenty years’ extensive experience in the
company secretarial practice and has almost thirty years' experience in the
management of large and well-known enterprises, and she has worked in
Singapore for more than three years.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company ("AGM") has an unexpired service
contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Terms of Office for the Independent Non-Executive Directors

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs") were appointed
for a specific term of two years which shall continue until 31st December,
2022 but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or
any other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.

Directors’ Interests

As at 31st December, 2020, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules").
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not
being the INEDs) are considered to have interests in the businesses listed
below which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

1. Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, Edwin Lo King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang
are directors of TACI which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly
engaged in the businesses of money lending, property investment
and property management; and

2. Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau is a director of Allied Group Limited which,
through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses
of money lending, property investment and property management.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in other
companies by virtue of their respective common directorship, they will fuffil
their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that they will act in the best interests
of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the
Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm'’s length from, the businesses of such companies.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors
or an entity connected with the Directors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or Chief Executives (including their spouses and
children under the age of 18) of the Company had any interests in or
was granted any right to subscribe in any shares, underlying shares, or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts and the agreements relating to the sharing
of administrative services and management services (“Service Agreement”)
and the sharing of internal audit services and management information
system services (“IA & MIS Service Agreement”), no other contracts, relating
to the management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during
the year.

The Company entered into the Service Agreement with TACI on 2nd
January, 2020 for a period of three years from 1st January, 2020 to 31st
December, 2022.

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, being the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company, and the managing director and an executive director of TAC, is
deemed to be interested in the Service Agreement. Messrs. Edwin Lo King
Yau and Tao Tsan Sang, being the Executive Directors of the Company and
the executive directors of TACI, are deemed to be interested in the Service
Agreement.

The Company entered into the IA & MIS Service Agreement with Allied
Group Limited (“AGL") on 2nd January, 2020 for a period of three years
from 1st January, 2020 to 3 1st December, 2022.

Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau, being an Executive Director of the Company and
an executive director of AGL, is deemed to be interested in the 1A & MIS
Service Agreement.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions
against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Substantial Shareholders' and Other Persons’ Interests

To the best of Directors’ knowledge, as at 31st December, 2020, the
following shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) had interests in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

MR (TR DT - required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:
BERRINRERRIGZHE
Number of shares and underlying shares interested
BAER EEER LERE BT
(LES5ES (&M BRinEEZ
ASBEH) i) @;hast
Personal Corporate Approximate
Interests Interests % of the
(held as (interest of Hftiga €L relevant total
BREE beneficial controlled Other Total number of
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests issued shares
KL - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.98%
TACI (Mizt1)
(Note 1)
A SE] - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.98%
AGL (Hf:#3) (Ktit2)
(Note 3) (Note 2)
Lee and Lee Trust - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.98%
(Btzt4) (H15t2)
(Note 4) (Note 2)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Substantial Shareholders' and Other Persons’ Interests
(continued)

Notes:

1. The interest was held by Autobest Holdings Limited (“Autobest”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Advance Growth Investments Limited (“Advance Growth"). As
Advance Growth is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TACI, TACI was therefore deemed
to have an interest in the shares in which Autobest was interested.

2. This represents the same interests of TACI in 930,376,898 shares.

3. AGL, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, indirectly owned approximately 48.86%
of the total number of issued shares of TACI and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the shares in which TACI was interested.

4. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of
Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. The Lee and Lee Trust controlled
approximately 74.96% of the total number of issued shares of AGL (inclusive
of Mr. Lee Seng Hui's personal interests) and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the shares in which AGL was interested through TACI.

5. All interests stated above as at 31st December, 2020 represent long positions as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Employees

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group, excluding associated companies,
employed 29 (2019: 30) persons, all (2019: all) were employed in Hong
Kong. The Group maintains a policy of paying competitive remuneration
packages and employees are also rewarded on performance related
basis including salary and bonus. Details of the Directors’ and employees’
emoluments in the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2020 are
set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements. Details
of the remuneration policy of the Directors are set out in the “Remuneration
Committee” section contained in the Corporate Governance Report on
page 22.

In addition to basic salaries, employees in Hong Kong are provided with
medical insurance and some of them are included under a defined
contribution provident fund scheme and mandatory provident fund scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's largest
and the five largest customers were approximately 11% and 46% of the
Group's revenue respectively, and the aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group's largest and the five largest suppliers were approximately 79%
and 99% of the Group's purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders, which to
the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company's
total number of issued shares, had a beneficial interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Save for the Company's purchase of its own shares on the Stock Exchange
as disclosed below, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year
ended 3 1st December, 2020. The reason for making repurchase of shares is
to reduce the overall cost of capital by utilized the unused cash.

BERMBRR
Purchase price per share

BftEER
(K&t ABASZAT)
Bk S E Aggregate
Number of consideration
B A RA shares ESE RIEE  paid (before
Date of repurchases repurchased Highest Lowest expenses)
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
—EZEFRARA 6th May, 2020 200,000 1.25 1.22 245,290
—ETFRALER 7th May, 2020 186,000 1.22 1.22 226,920
HET - Total: 386,000 4727210
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 12 to 32.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=ED

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asiasec Properties
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 66 to 175, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st December, 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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FAREAZEIE ()

ARERER
Key audit matter

REMRZMGE

Valuation of investment properties

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

EMRERTRERRERERZSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB EMXEERESBREEZTH BN REMEMLE
Hig AU EHRRBEBMEBEN - URREEAABER IR
BEARFIE -

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgments and estimations associated with
determining the fair value.

BUER A M ISRARMI T 15T E - EEEMEEWMERMR
FEERESZEE  FF  LEREFEES R-T-ZTF+=
A=+—H:sHEA1,3542930008C - REE_ZT_TF
TZA=+—HIFE W BESEBBEREEREVEZARE
EE ) 532,6350008 T E NG IBRRATER ©

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties which
represent commercial, residential and carparks located in
Hong Kong and the People's Republic of China carried
at HK$1,354,293,000 as at 31st December, 2020.
During the year ended 31st December, 2020, a loss from
change in fair value of the Group's investment properties
of HK$32,635,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

BEEBZMARENEDZEB YA EREEFHED([FHE
B )T 2 RER AR BEETE o SEKRERS REEE
ZETEZRRNREZHARE  SEEARKESR - ERKa
ERER B mSEMES -

All of the Group's investment properties are measured at
fair value with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent and qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer").
The valuation depends on certain significant assumptions and
key inputs that involve management's judgments, including
term vyield, revisionary yield and market unit rent.

BB RERHEIREYE 2 AEZEF 815

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

« AHERHEENZBEES - N RFEIL

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

s ERFEEMAEEBRIENRTTE  METSH KRR - HE
Pk E2RR - MEMAZBARAGRHEE 2
AR

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

c HETERBZDERBRRZEEN + &

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions to industry norms; and

© RERMEMEDENAE - EBLBRERBEZER
S8 - fHEEIRE RSP RAZ ERH AR
BRI

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
them, on a sample basis, to entity-specific information
and market data based on our knowledge of the
property markets.
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FAREAZEIE ()

MREZER

Key audit matter

FERBELTZREME

Valuation of investment properties of associates

BAEHE AR 2 REMERTE ABRERZER AR EK
BEENR  REMEHMENR 2 EaE BRBEZGAM

BHREANE—ERHE - URNEERE AR 2SR E
BEF S R ERFH

We identified the valuation of investment properties of
associates as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
investment properties of associates to the Group's interests
in associates in the context of the Group's consolidated
financial statements, combined with the significant judgments
and estimations associated with determining the carrying
value of interests in associates.

PG AR ERERMFF 16 RI20)FTHE - EEBEBHEN
A)/A2,556,436,000/87C ' 1 ESEEBEEHS6% ' EEH
EMEBREYERE - BEBEZBERRESSNERE
BEZIREYMERT,546,760,00058 7T © EH2,645,087,00078
TER E£E -

As disclosed in notes 16 and 32(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group's associates of
HK$2,556,436,000, representing approximately 56% of
the Group's total assets, are principally engaged in property
development and property investment. The major non-
current assets of the associates’ investment properties in
Hong Kong amounting to HK$7,546,760,000 of which
HK$2,645,087,000 was attributable to the Group.

BREBE R RMESIR 2 RAIKASIRR - IR R B
MEEMZEESREERETAR  TEANREVELA
EEZEPMELENEBERARZME - ERERBEGERA
B WIKHEE TEZ2HRIEEIBRARE - 2FEARAREE
EEmRE R EFIEA M5 EAEE -

The Group's interests in associates are carried at cost and
adjusted for share of post-acquisition profits and other
comprehensive income that are mainly contributed by
changes in fair value of investment properties, in which the
fair value as calculated by the Valuer is based on certain
significant assumptions and key inputs that involve the
management's judgments and estimations, including term
yield, revisionary yield and market unit rent.

DRBEARAT —S-_TEFY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

EMRERPRERRBTERERZSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB AR E AR ZRENEZHEZEFERE

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of
investment properties of associates included:

- HMEEEEHBEARREMNSHREEEERE
FHEEDZBBES) ~ e REEIE

ik

0 Assessing the appropriateness of management's
accounting for interests in associates; evaluating the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of the Valuer;

« ERFEEAGEBRIENRTE  METSH KRR - HE
RNz ERMRR - HEMAZARHEBRE N ERE
AR

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

0 FHETTRRB 2 IDENMBRRZ AR + R

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions to industry norms; and

c RERMEDMEDSHAE  EBULBREREEZER
Liig#iE - FHEEEE RHERAERA 2 T BB AR
Bz BB -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
them, on a sample basis, to entity-specific information
and market data based on our knowledge of the
property markets.

R
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ERERAAREE BESENMBHERRE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2021
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BE-F-FF/=f=1—ALFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2020

k- - Jomk -3 3 —T-NEF
2020 2019
i F#T FHET
NOTES HKS000 HK8'000
WA Revenue 5a 51,251 55,944
HAA Other income 6 32,366 21,543
H b Yzs & g5 18 Other gains and losses 7 428 (2,227)
TAHEEEERE 2 HE - Impairment losses under expected
PackiVeik= credit loss model, net of reversal (4,551) (180)
He REMm Rent and rates (1,350) (1,588)
BFEREE Building management fees (6.940) (6,389)
EEA Staff costs
(BIEESHS) (including directors’ emoluments) (14,592) (13,726)
e R Depreciation and amortisation (100) (85)
HIERIRE Repairs and maintenance (967) (1,312)
HbfE Other expenses (8.080) (8,404)
FRBRRARBEEE Net increase in fair value of
ZEMBEZAABE financial assets at fair value
EIE N through profit or loss 412 -
Rt AREME 2 AR EBEE Operating profit before change in
BV AT 205 A fair value of investment properties 47,877 43,576
REREMEZ AR EBEES (Loss) gain from change in fair value
(518 Wees of investment properties 15 (32,635) 9,128
=ikl Operating profit 15,242 52,704
FEARE & A 7] (518 s 5 Share of (loss) profit of associates (69,029) 8,967
KRB A (E1R) & T (Loss) profit before taxation (53,787) 61,671
RS i i Income tax expense 8 (2,863) (3,657)
RNEZ (ER) AT (Loss) profit for the year 9 (56.650) 58,014
b-7/1} BN
HK cents HK cents
Tk (EE) &R (Loss) earnings per share
N Basic 12 (4.57) 4.67
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FeESREMZAKRER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
k- ol 3.3 —ENEF
2020 2019
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
REZE (BB & (Loss) profit for the year (56,650) 58,014
HiaEER : Other comprehensive expense:
BERT 2B DB E 155 ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently
ZIEA - to profit or loss:
BERefE s A EEZD Change in fair value of club memberships - (6,239)
FRHEMEEWRERA R EE Change in fair value of equity instrument
BRI IRAT AN AR BE at fair value through other
=k comprehensive income (5.248) 1,041
(5.248) (5,198)
BETE R[RE B AT DA E 1R i Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
ZHEA - profit or loss:
KEREZR Currency translation differences 2,730 (1,271)
REFEMPEER - Other comprehensive expense for the year,
Btz net of tax (2,518) (6,469)
RNEEZHE(ER)WHEHE Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year (59.168) 51,545




68

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2020
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R-E=FF+=H=+—4

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
at 3 1st December, 2020

—ECEF —TNEF
2020 2019
k=g FET T
NOTES HKS000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBDRE Non-current assets
E NN Property, plant and equipment 14 927 1,007
"EMH Investment properties 15 1,354,293 1,383,647
RERE N Z i Interests in associates 16 2,556,436 2,690,680
FEWE R Loan receivables 20 110,009 175,152
FRERRARBEREY Financial assets at fair value through

TREE profit or loss 17 39,296 -
FREMEEmEERAREERE Y Equity instrument at fair value through

RATA other comprehensive income 18 33,457 38,705
(e Club memberships 4,261 4,261

4,098,679 4,293,452
REEE Current assets
R 5 R E M e IR Trade and other receivables,

TEfERF R IRE prepayments and deposits 19 34,645 13,746
FEUE X Loan receivables 20 139,159 44,438
FRBRRANBEREZ Financial assets at fair value through

TREE profit or loss 17 61,866 -
JEUSTES: & A BIBR 5K Amounts due from associates 27 23,209 90,229
AEREPEHL Income tax recoverable 769 68
ReRBEE Cash and cash equivalents 21 186,175 217,031

445,823 365,512
HEE Total assets 4,544,502 4,658,964
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DEBERRQE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
at 31st December, 2020

— ==
=
—=

—TEFH 69

ot~ ~Jat= 3 3 —E-NF
2020 2019
b FEIT FET
NOTES HK$°000 HK3'000
a2 EQUITY
[N Share capital 22 681,899 681,899
s Reserves 3,664,020 3,754,690
aEa Total equity 4,345,919 4,436,589
" LIABILITIES
FREBAR Non-current liability
EEHEAE Deferred tax liabilities 23 166,849 170,093
mEAR Current liabilities
FERSRIEREREA Creditors and accruals 24 25,855 32,497
FESTES A BIBR SR Amounts due to associates 27 - 17,236
FERFT1S L Income tax payable 5,879 2,549
31,734 52,282
Ham Total liabilities 198,583 222,375
HBRESRAR Total equity and liabilities 4,544,502 4,658,964

HHNECREEF TS A 2R BEMKRENL
SRBMEETE

Z_—F=-AtN\BRE=X
Wl MIESHARESE

and are signed on its behalf by:

R E HRi6
Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau
£ BE
Director Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 175 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18th March, 2021



70

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2020

FeEcEEER

BE—FE_FFL_F=1—HIFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

BE nE EfR
123 EfRE EfRR e 1] ] RERH ana
Investment Property
Share  revaluation revaluation Exchange Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve profits equity
TET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZZE—NF—HA—H  AtlstJanuary, 2019 681,899 33,849 78922 (7,563) 3,722,043 4,509,150
FERgH Profit for the year = = = = 58014 58,014
RRHaRE, Change in fair value of lub
NhEEE memberships = (6,239) = = = (6,239)
ek Change in fair value of equity
BRRE EEEZM‘ instrument at fair value
IRZPREER through other
comprehensive income - 1,041 - - - 1,041
BERERE Currengy translation differences - - = (1,271) = (1,271)
REEEMEAER Other comprehensive expense
for the year - (5,198) - (1,271) - (6,469)
AEERE(ERA)ME  Total comprehensive (expense)
e income for the year - (5,198) - (1,271) 58,014 51,545
THEBE-F—/\F  Dividend relatingto 2018 (note 13)
RE (/f/fﬂfzz) - - - = (124,106) (124,106)
RZE-NE At 315t December, 2019
+=A=+-H 681,899 28,651 78922 (8,834) 3,655,951 4,436,589
ENER Loss for the year - - - - (56,650) (56,650)
BRAMEENE Change in fair value of equity
BRAE @E"‘E@ZH@ instrument at fair value
TAZRAEEE through other
comprehensive income - (5,248) - - - (5,°248)
BEREZZ Currency translation differences - - - 2,730 - 2,730
AEEEM2E(ER)  Other comprehensive (expense)
Wi income for the year - (5,248) - 2730 - (2,518)
NEERE(EM)KE  Total comprehensive (expense)
pke income for the year - (5248) - 2,730 (56,650) (59,168)
SHBB=F-NF  Dividend relatingto 2019 (note 13)
s (/f/f?lz) - - - - (31,026) (31,026)
I AR Repurchase and cancellation
(Wit22) of shares (note 22) - - - - (476) (476)
R-E-TF At 315t December, 2020
D 681,899 23,403 78922 (6104) 3567799 4345919
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

DERBEFRAT —T_TFFR

—E-% —ZE-NEF
2020 2019
FEIT T
HKS000 HK$'000
BEEY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR75 AT (E51E) 7 A (Loss) profit before taxation (53,787) 61,671
R Adjustments for:

ME - MEEREBZITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 100 85

R H (e ) EiE Net exchange (gain) loss (428) 2,227

TREEEEERE ZRE - Impairment loss under expected credit loss

Parkiche - model, net of reversal 4,551 180

REZEMEZ ARER Loss (gain) from change in fair value of

BE)EE () investment properties 32,635 (9,128)

FE(RE & N B EE (s F]) Share of loss (profit) of associates 69,029 (8,967)

RITABUA Bank interest income (2,115) (3,246)

BN EHA Loan interest income (23,913) (17,867)

ERE R IFEL L&) Gain on non-substantial modification of a loan

Wz receivable (4,844) -

FEERRARBEREZ Net increase in fair value of financial assets at fair

TRBEZ AR BEFEN value through profit or loss (412) -

2R 8 HoAth IR IR 2 AL B A Interest income from other receivables (220) (213)
EEESEHRIZ Operating cash flows before working capital

HEREM changes 20,596 24,742
R 5 N H A FEWGRIA - Increase in trade and other receivables,

TARTBR R SR AR 23 N prepayments and deposits (21,206) (1,907)
FETERIE R FE AT B AR (2 ) 3 N (Decrease) increase in creditors and accruals (6,669) 5,163
(AR REEEEB 2R EN Cash (used in) generated from operations (7,279) 27,998
(BR)REEESH Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid) refunded (4,286) 1
(AR )REEEXBZERPBE NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES (11,565) 27,999
A INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BERERBERRARBEREZ Purchase of financial assets at fair value through

TRIEE profit or loss (100,750) -
BTER Loan advanced (57,941) (152,000)
BEWME - WE&&E Purchases of property, plant and equipment (20) (159)
REHERRIER Repayment from associates 67,020 110,000
BHREEE A RIS Dividends received from associates 65,215 -
2R ERF B Loan interest received 28,757 17,867
BB Loan repaid 23,000 127,587
BEUERTTHI B Bank interest received 2,115 3,246
BUCR B HE M ERFIE 2 A BU A Interest received from other receivables 220 213
RERBERGZRRBE NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 27,616 106,754
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FaReRBER(E) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
ot~ ~Jat= 3 3 —ZT-NEF
2020 2019
k=g FET T
NOTE HKS000 HK3'000
MERE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BB E Dividend paid 13 (31,026) (124,106)
REBE QR GERER (Repayment to) advance from
associates (17,236) 9,820
B & AN =T SH A AR 19 Repurchase and cancellation of shares (476) -
ARMEEBZERBE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (48,738) (114,286)
ReRBEEE NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN
(WD )EmEH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (32,687) 20,467
REMZHRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
H&EE AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 217,031 198,001
SMERmEWS EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
b4 7 RATE CHANGES 1,831 (1,437)
RERZHRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Ra%E AT THE END OF THE YEAR 186,175 217,031
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

1. General Information

Asiasec Properties Limited (“Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Autobest Holdings
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) and its ultimate holding
company is Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI")
(incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on the Stock Exchange). The address
of the registered office which is also principal place of business of the
Company is disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual
report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are property investment (including by way of
equity investment as details set out in note 18), property leasing and estate
management. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1st January, 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts of application on Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
“Definition of Material”

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states
“information is material if omitting misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality depends on the nature
or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments!

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions*

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 25

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 201 8-

20202

Amendments to HKFRSs

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2022.

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2020.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange.

The management has, at the time of approving the consolidated financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets".
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted at
fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in an
amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group's performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount to which
the Group has the right to invoice.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application or arising from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course of
business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the
Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the
original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
from lessees.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of ownership
interest of a property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
buildings components, unless allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,

less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by

the terms and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and measured
under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term. The Group presents right-of-
use assets, if any, in “property, plant and equipment’, the same line item
within which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if

they were owned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures

the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at

that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
the initial discount rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant property revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course of
business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that
at initial application of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or
. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial

instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designed and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(i)  Equity instrument designated as at FVTOCI

Investment in equity instrument at FVTOCI is subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investment, and will continue to be held in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Dividends from the investment in equity instrument recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “revenue” line item in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the “net increase
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade receivables and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, cash and cash equivalents
and loan receivables) which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-months ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap

prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease

in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on an individual
basis taking into consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic information.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash flows are
renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
assesses whether the revised terms result in a substantial modification
from original terms taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial asset.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do not result in
derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial assets will
be calculated at the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial assets' original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at
the date of modification.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including creditors and amounts due to associates are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.



REMBRRMEGR)
BE-F=FF+=f=1—AULFE

3. %ié,ﬂﬁ% MRZIFBREAENES
SETBUR (&)

SreE

RS ERREEE M BWKRE - AZER
WREEBAINZ BB EIT IR B R P E R s
REXRGEREDREEREER - RBEHR -
PISNE RIE - ERIARHIRE B ZERERS
HRE - AR EBERINEIIEZIFEEIARB T
BRAABEETE A ZEREXSHRE - 1%
SNEESERRA B2 IFEHRE T EEMAH -

&

ERHBRERESRENENMREMELZE
REBEOREEMENEEARR

REIEARMBHRERME  AEEZEERARE
TN BERRERERRESREEZ 27
B (AERT)  MEKRAREBRIIZZFREZF
BERETHRE  BRIFEXRZBMEALBAE
REBAIERR - RILERT  AIRAXSERZ
ERER - ELZELZR(WA)HHEARE
2 E R as o REtiHES R2 F 5 7 Bhisé i o

HEBSEK(BIHEREEEZBEIRBTHE
2EbER - AMESRYBRZBINEBREE
HEMELRR - AHEF B BROERERE
REREERE R MEENIINEEBNEE A
A) - EZEFAEMNRENARRER AN R

RmPEAEE L ERIEH DR AR

DEMEARAT — T -TFEFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from (loss) profit before taxation because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale,
which is always presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

4.  Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from certain investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in determining the
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is subject to income taxes on
the fair value changes of the investment properties on disposal.

As at 31st December, 2020, the carrying amount of deferred tax
on investment properties is amounted to HK$151,264,000 (2019:
HK$155,842,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

4.  Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. The determination of the
fair value involves certain assumptions of market conditions which are set
out in notes 15 and 16.

In relying on the valuation report, the management have exercised their
judgment and are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of
the current market conditions. Whilst the Group considers valuations of
the Group's investment properties are the best estimates, the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in greater market volatility depending on
how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve which have led to
higher degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current
year. Changes to these assumptions, including the potential risk of any
unexpected incidents as a result of change in macroeconomic environment,
travel restrictions implemented by many countries, increased complexity
in international trade tensions geopolitics, changes in policy direction and/
or mortgage requirements, or other unexpected incidents would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

4.  Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair values of investment properties (continued)

As at 31st December, 2020, the carrying amount of the Group's investment
properties is HK$1,354,293,000 (2019: HK$1,383,647,000) and the major
non-current assets of the associates represent investment properties in
Hong Kong amounting to HK$7,546,760,000 (2019: HK$7,803,820,000)
of which HK$2,645,087,000 (2019: HK$2,736,773,000) was attributable
to the Group.

Notes 15 and 16 provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of these assets.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31st December, 2020, certain of the Group's financial assets
amounting to HK$72,753,000 (2019: HK$38,705,000) are measured at
fair value with fair value being determined by using valuation techniques
based on significant unobservable inputs. Judgment and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant
inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result
in material adjustments to the fair value of these instruments. Information
about fair value measurement of these financial instruments are set out in
notes 17, 18 and 29(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

4.  Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision of ECL for loan receivables and related interest and
other receivables

The Group determines the ECL for loan receivables and related interest and
other receivables based on probability of default and loss given default for
each individual loan as each of them have different loss patterns.

In determining the ECL, the Group engages the Valuer to perform the
calculation of ECL taking into account on each of the borrowers and their
guarantor’s background, repayment history of their loans and forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. The management of the Company works closely
with the Valuer to determine the appropriate default rate and loss given
default rate. At every reporting date, the probability of default and loss given
default are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Due to greater
financial uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
increased the expected loss rates in the current year as there is higher
risk that a prolonged pandemic could led to increased credit default rates.
As at 31st December, 2020, the carrying amount of loan receivables
and related interest and other receivables is HK$258,290,000 (2019:
HK$223,315,000), net of ECL of HK$5,473,000 (2019: HK$925,000).
Information about the ECL and the Group's loan receivables and other
receivables is disclosed in note 29(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

5a. Revenue and Segment Information

k- o 32 —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET BT
HK$°000 HK$000

KREMENETEEE Rental income from investment properties
WA that is fixed 44,421 49,532
MEEEB Estate management fees 5,330 4912

REFEBEMEEKGRAREE Dividend income from equity instrument

BRIE 2 IR T AR B at FVTOCI 1,500 1,500
51,251 55,944

MEERENPAR —BREBR AR - XEEE
BENERMEEHERBTEM K REELE
155 AIERME TR BN WA - RIFABEE
BRNGRZESD  BARIBEZUREABEE
MMEERE - RREBYBREEAE155ER
B R=F_FER T NFFT_H=F—8H

YT RBENFEERBZMFTRIER I ZENE
IR
RRABNRTEECDHRAR/ZDNEERKE -

%ﬂ?ﬁ%$§w3$%lé’]%¥ﬁf&%¥ EIERMA
—2ENE - WIRI AR ENBRBYBEER
At - WEHAREBZ WA - ¥ - BERAE
TEDERAAT

RIZB-ZTE+-A=+—0 BEBEREA
REEREZEREE  FEEMEZEWSEA

REEREZBRATAEREBRERIN  TRER
MPEARERB([HE]) 2 FERBEELES

7l & 3,856,479,000 7% Jt K& 59,438,000 % 7T ( =
T — L4 : 4,023,203,000% 7T & 56,392,000 7%
TL) c RAFE - EBRFPEMSHAKAS
7l £50,020,0007 75 % 1,231,000/ 7L ( = F — /1
4 : 54,852,000/ 7% 1,092,00077T) °

Revenue from estate management fees is recognised over time. The Group
applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to recognise revenue in the
amount that the Group has the right to invoice based on the terms of the
relevant lease agreements in which the Group bills a fixed monthly amount
in advance. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price of estate
management services allocated to the remaining performance obligations as
at 31st December, 2020 and 2019 is not disclosed.

The executive directors of the Company have been identified as the chief
operating decision maker. The executive directors regard the Group's
business as a single operating segment, which is property leasing and estate
management and reviews financial information as a whole accordingly.
Therefore, no segment analysis of the Group's revenue, results, assets and
liabilities are presented.

As at 31st December, 2020, other than financial assets at FVTPL, equity
instrument at FVTOCI and loan receivables, the total of non-current assets
located in Hong Kong and the People's Republic of China (“PRC") is
HK$3,856,479,000 and HK$59,438,000 (2019: HK$4,023,203,000
and HK$56,392,000) respectively. During the current year, the total
revenue derived from Hong Kong and the PRC is HK$50,020,000 and
HK$1,231,000 (2019: HK$54,852,000 and HK$1,092,000) respectively.

111



112 Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2020

FEMBEHRRMEEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

5b. FERFZER 5b. Information About Major Customers

EAREBBUIAT10%A EHBEEFHIEEME  Revenue from customers relating to rents from investment properties of
TSR EPIALT the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

k- ol -3 3 —T-NF
2020 2019
FET FET
HKS$000 HK$000
XA Customer A 5,426 N/A!
=FB Customer B 5,348 5,886
EPC Customer C N/A! 6,425
®FD Customer D N/A! 6,143
‘ HEFEBVURA MG T BB 2N S E 4 A 1000 © ! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group.
6. HAulgA 6. Other Income
- Jat- 3 3 —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
HRATHLEMA Bank interest income 2,115 3,246
BERALERA Loan interest income 23,913 17,867
BRI BN (A 5ta) Government grants (Note a) 1,175 -
IR B H fth B U R 2 FI SR A Interest income from other receivables 220 213
ERE R FEE EE e Gain on non-substantial modification of
(KizEb) a loan receivable (Note b) 4,844 =
HAth Others 99 217
32,366 21,543

Bt - Notes:

(a) WMAEE AEBERFHTRFESHEBENEER (@  During the current year, the Group recognised government grants of HK$1,175,000
R FEBN1,175,000/ 7T - HEBERIITRRE in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies, which related to Employment Support
BRI E|IAR - Scheme provided by Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

(b) BE-E-FERZINASY  AeE@EaEgE  (b)  Pursuant to an agreement entered in late 2020, the Group is entitled to receive

HAEEZER  YHER AL TEARELRE a fee from a borrower and recognised a gain on non-substantial modification of
SR RN ARERE S EEE a loan receivable since the borrower modified the covenants of an existing loan
BES o BIBREBRK - HBETE T HEKA receivable. The modification do not constitute change in contractual cash flows
EHRARMES R -_EBE-—TE+-A=+— pursuant to the original contractual term. As at 3 1st December, 2020, the balance is

B - HemEs A il EE o included in other receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

7. Other Gains and Losses

k- o 32 —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
VB s (B518) Net exchange gain (loss) 428 (2,227)
8. FIfIBix< i 8. Income Tax Expense
ot -3 —TNE
2020 2019
FHET FET
HKS000 HK8'000
BEPTSH Hong Kong Profits Tax
RNEE Current year 7,129 4,027
BT E B EE Over provision in prior years (214) 9)
6,915 4018
RETIA (f17723) Deferred taxation (note 23) (4,052) (361)
AEFRBRE M Income tax expense for the year 2,863 3,657

R-ZZE—N\F=A=+—8 BB LigRB_
T+ EHRBEUSET) (B7HREOEZR(TEZED) -
EHMRHIFEHESNE - ZERR T —/\F
ZAZTN\BEAIKAERE  WRBRTIEBKR
AR EMRFIFIEHESET - FEERHE
EEENE2E S5 NZ8. 2508 i
B2 H EB LRSI R 16.5% B - TRHEA M
A I RIS 7 11 2 A% A B B 2 B8 Y Vi ) 65 £ 48 A
16.50%H) A — Tt AT

RIEFR B ZEMERA([DEMSFRE]D) T
FIBEABIRIES - REMBEFER - BHERF
BB /B A R TR A25% ©

On 21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (“Bill") which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28th
March, 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

8. Income Tax Expense (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

k- o 32 —E-NEF

2020 2019

FET T

HK$°000 HK8'000

B Al (B398 A (Loss) profit before taxation (53,787) 61,671
REBHSHRE165% 2 2F18 Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax of 16.5%

(ZZ—N%F : 16.5%) (2019: 16.5%) (8.875) 10,176
PRI E 2 & Effect of different tax rate 430 795
TR 2 2 B8 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

2 tax purpose 2,051 177
FERRTIA 2 BIE 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1.683) (4279)
FEIGBE 2 R RDE A 2 IR & Tax effect of share of profit of associates 11,390 (1,480)
BIEFE B Over provision in prior years (214) ©)
RERTIAEIR 2 AT E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 6 6
PABERERTIREE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not

ZBiER 2 recognised (16) (1,551)
BAERERETE Income tax at recessionary rate (165) (165)
Hith Others (61) (13)
REEZBHEH Income tax expense for the year 2,863 3,657
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FEMBHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

9. AFE(ER)ZH

9. (Loss) Profit for the Year

ot Jot - —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
RNEE (ER) RN EHE (Loss) profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:
M - B LREBITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 100 85
FekEMER Salaries and other costs 14,290 13,426
RRREFIFT B Retirement benefits scheme contributions 302 300
EENAEH(PEESHE) Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 14,592 13,726
ELEHSRAZIZEEYFER Direct operating expenses of investment
HEEEER properties that generated rental income 8,827 9,160
WEEEHS WA ZIREYED Direct operating expenses of investment
HEEEER properties that did not generate rental income 330 356
% E A Audit fee 1,258 1,273
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

10. Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2019: seven)

Directors were as follows:

ZB2F
2020
e/

RHER Rk ER

Hitig# RIS

Salaries/ Retirement

EEW&  service fees FIETE benefits
Directors’ and other Discretionary scheme By
fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
FET FET TET TET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BITEE Executive Directors

FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 325 405 - 740
B Lee Shu Yin 10 2,275 2,042 18 4,345
HR Edwin Lo King Yau 10 - - - 10
(igcda Tao Tsan Sang 10 218 n 20 589
40 2,818 2,788 38 5,684

PRBTRZATEEHE T BN RERRAT R
AEBEER 2 RF

77

BIFHTEE Independent
Non-Executive Directors

PRI Li Chak Hung

£RER Choi Kin Man

BB Lisa Yang Lai Sum

PRBRZBILFRTETHE RN R EIER
RRBZERZIRE °

B Total

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services

in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

10 118 - - 128
10 92 - - 102
10 92 - - 102
30 302 - - 332

The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

for their services as directors of the Company.

6,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

10. EEMlE @) 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
—FNF
2019
e/
PR & K RRTRA
H izl BEES
Salaries/ Retirement
BEE service fees FETEAL benefits
Directors' and other  Discretionary scheme st
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
FAT THET T FAT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITEE Executive Directors
FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 325 362 - 697
THE Lee Shu Yin 10 2,275 2,032 18 4,335
HR Edwin Lo King Yau 10 - - - 10
(igcda Tao Tsan Sang 10 218 272 20 520
40 2,818 2,666 38 5,562

77

PRBTRZATEEHE T ERNREERRF R
AEEER 2 R

BIEHRTEER Independent
Non-Executive Directors

PRI Li Chak Hung

2R Choi Kin Man

BB Lisa Yang Lai Sum

PRBRZ B IFATEETME T 2N REER
KRB ZERZIR °

k) Total

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

10 118 = = 128
10 92 = = 102
10 92 = = 102
30 302 = = 332

The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

5,894
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REMBRRMEGR)
BE-F=FF+=f=1—AULFE

1) e

FREBEERFHEREDHBITARTEIER
THERZBE  MRAEREZ e BREIE
REFRITBEZRERB ZME -
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~

AEB Y BRSEME AL 200 (ZB—AF 2
(1) AES - EMS D EER DIRIE10 - H43
f(—B—AE )AL BE-Z-Z5+-A
S+—BILEEZMEMT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei and Mr. Lee Shu Yin perform the function of
the chairman and chief executive of the Company respectively and their
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by the
chairman and chief executive.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 31st
December, 2020 and 2019.

11. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, there
are two (2019: two) Directors whose emoluments are included in note 10
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) individuals
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020 are as follows:

—EBEHF —ZE—hF

2020 2019

FET F#T

HK$’000 HKZ000

e RHEMER] Salaries and other benefits 2,108 2,368
EARERE RS Performance related incentive payments 151 166
RIREFIET BN Retirement benefits scheme contributions 436 51
2,695 2,585
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CAC))

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

11. Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

ZEANLZME T The emoluments of the individual are within the following bands:
—BCBF —FNF
2020 2019
ES®A BEHA
Number of Number of
employees employees
078 7T — 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 3

REE 2 Fr BB SRR IR 1T 35 #r K F & & 487
SERRRENRE 2RREE - REMFA
AN B R B AL AR = B A S ASHERIE RN
AREERBSEMAREBERIFBEREERES
BV 2 $REH o

12. IR (EE)&F

RATRE AN 2 SREA(EBR) BF T TS
B -

The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the prevailing
remuneration level in the market and the performance of respective group
companies and individuals employees. During both years, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or a compensation for loss of
office as a director.

12. (Loss) Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following:

k- Jok -3 3 —TNEF
2020 2019
FETT FHET
HK$'000 HK3'000
(B8R )2F (Loss) earnings
AT ESREAR(EE) BF 2 %F  (Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
(RARIRREEREE per share ((loss) profit for the year attributable

(B18)mF) to owners of the Company) (56.650) 58,014
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FEMBERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
12. GR(EE)&BF®) 12. (Loss) Earnings Per Share (continued)
k-~ ok 3 3 —E-NEF
2020 2019
F F
‘000 ‘000
2 Number of shares
FUAFTEERER(EE)BF 2 Number of ordinary shares for the purpose
gl G| of basic (loss) earnings per share 1,240,802 1,241,055

Mt EESREANBE 2T ARMMNEFHEE  The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
o ARFEEZOBEMTHEORMEEFAR - R =  loss per share has been adjusted for repurchase and cancellation of shares
T_TEEN_T-NFERNILREEITEING  during the year. No diluted (loss) earnings per share for both 2020 and
BELTER AHR -_ZE-_TFER_FT—NF 2019 were presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue

B WREZ27BREE(ER)BF - for both 2020 and 2019.
13. IRB 13. Dividend
ot 2 3 —E-NEF
2020 2019
F#&T FET
‘000 ‘000
REENRRBSRZER : Dividend recognised as
distributions during the year:
ENZZE-NFZTHRE An interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend)
(REBRBRE) REHR2.5%(L for 2019 paid of HK2.5 cents
(Z2—NF: BN ZZ-N\F (2019: An interim dividend (in lieu of a final
ZHERB(RERBIRE) dividend) for 2018 paid of HK10 cents)
A1074L) per share 31,026 124,106

EEYFATERREBE-_ZT_FF+=H The Board has resolved not to declare any interim dividend for the year
St HUEZPHRE(ZZ—AF : FHR  ended 31st December, 2020 (2019: an interim dividend (in lieu of a final
B(REARHEBRE) ZT25E - &5t A  dvidend) of HK$31,026,000, representing HK2.5 cents per share).
31,026,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

HELH
REEY
Leasehold VN RERKE RE
land and Office Furniture Motor gt
buildings  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B*E COoST
RZZT—-NF—H—H At 1st January, 2019 965 2,232 16,239 379 19,815
HEREEZR Currency translation difference - - M - Q)
BE Additions = 139 20 = 159
R=ZT—N%F At 31st December, 2019
+-A=1+—~H 965 2,371 16,258 379 19,973
BEhEEZR Currency translation difference - 1 1 - 2
BE Additions - 20 - - 20
i Written-off - (54) - - (54)
NZZT_EF At 31st December, 2020
+-A=t+—H 965 2,338 16,259 379 19,941
HE DEPRECIATION
RZZE—NF—A—H At 1st January, 2019 238 2,038 16,227 379 18,882
HEREZR Currency translation difference - - Q) - Q)
REZ R Provided for the year 18 61 6 - 85
RZZE—NF At 31st December, 2019
+=-A=+—~H 256 2,099 16,232 379 18,966
HEREZR Currency translation difference - 1 1 - 2
REFFHR Provided for the year 18 76 6 - 100
TGS Eliminated from written-off - (54) - - (54)
R-ZE_TF At 31st December, 2020
+=-A=+—H 274 2,122 16,239 379 19,014
IREE CARRYING VALUES
i Sk S At 31st December, 2020
+ZA=+—H 691 216 20 - 927
RZZE—N%F At 31st December, 2019
+=-A=1+—~H 709 272 26 = 1,007
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FEMBERME(E)
BE—FE_FFF A= —HILFE

14. W% - BB L&k B o)

A FIEE R - BEREETEAZEERA

AIRERNBEREZA T FRTE

MHE 30 SR
Leasehold land and buildings

DA~
PN

Office equipment

RIEREE
Furniture and fixtures

e

Motor vehicles

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated residual
values at the following rates per annum:

BEREEE 2GR X=1TZh+F
Over the shorter of term of the lease, or 30 to 50 years

200%
20%

200%
20%

20-25%
20-25%
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FEMBHERMEGE)
BT —E—FE = H = —
15. IREYE

AEERBEEHELENEAXNESNZE
EEME  BEDENEES - HERIGHET
R—ERF(ZF-NF: —E2X~F) LEAE
77 ERER A B £ 2 (2 B AR T R BV AR 4R B
“E=F(ZTNF  ZEZF) A IRA
MATEREEERE  ARZBHESNHES
MHEEHK o

HEANTEERREBEERNSEEFER
ERRBEZMFRAEERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

15. Investment Properties

The Group leases out various residential properties, commercial properties
and carparks under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one to five years (2019: one to
six years), with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period for
two to three years (2019: two to three years) held by lessees only. Majority
of the lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend.

The lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee's
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

—ECEF —T-NEF
2020 2019
F#T FHET
HKS000 HK$'000
ArfBE FAIR VALUE
REA] At the beginning of the year 1,383,647 1,376,380
BEREER Currency translation difference 3,281 (1,861)
AREEFORD)IEM Net (decrease) increase in fair value
RIE R recognised in profit or loss (32,635) 9,128

RER At the end of the year 1,354,293 1,383,647
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FEMBEHRRMEEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

15. REV= ) 15. Investment Properties (continued)

ANEBZIREYER T _ZFK —_T—n4 The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 3 1st December,
+-A=t+—BZAAEMETHEAREBEE[A 2020 and 2019 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
REE AT AR E B AR ATNE BT on the respective dates by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited, a valuer not
fh{E - connected with the Group.

EEETEZ AL BER  MENZRSM&ER  In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
BEHERRR FLREMEZAAMBMEDT  the properties is their current use. The fair values of certain investment
2 DR RN ET R LAEWA - B E  properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued operating

BEtHE - lease income to avoid double counting.
—E-8F  —T-NF
2020 2019
FET &1
HK$°000 HK$000

REWZELLR Investment properties are located in:

B Hong Kong 1,295,470 1,327,870
+ PRC 58,823 55,777

1,354,293 1,383,647
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

15. Investment Properties (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of the
major investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation

EFTERMEETERZ2E)

: &*ETF’AMETEJ

techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which

EEODHAABERFIKFE(E—Z=H)MNE the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
e degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
ARRE fSERER
FRARFERENR A FESH ELORSBALMRREZRAE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmEBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
(B 2 EEWS E= REE(BHERR) BAURE(ZRITHEDE RAENRMRERE TR ABREENENeSHALER
Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (termand  BVREEABV R EELENREE) R2%ZE25%(ZF—NL TH -
in Hong Kong feversionary approach) 1 200%2.5%) °
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
FTE2YA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) MEkaEE
Term yield;

() EEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 2% to 2.5%
(2019: 2% to 2.5%).

ERURE(ZRIME BN EEEUTHHSNARE
fIi{E) 2,250 3%( = B—NF : 225%F30%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2.25% to 3% (2019: 2.25% to 3%).

MEEMR S RERTSTLBMALR - WZ RIS
ffENEE BRI - WEADARS - FOTSELH
eNTHBTHREBARSATZEETHREBASIAL(ZE
—NE: BYAREA3ELEETHREA0ET) «
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is from around
HK$32.5 sq.ft/month to HK$51 sqft/month (2019: HK$33
sq.ft/month to HK$50 sq.ft,/month).

B e %
T
The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

TERLELHENEERDLBE
-

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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BE—FE_FFL_F=1—HIFE

15. IEWZ (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

15. Investment Properties (continued)

ARRE HERER
FREFRBARENR 3 TESH ELRRSBAMARECHE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERLBRRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
(&S 2 RS E=R REL(BHERE) REANREE(ZRI T ENE RAENRERE RS TR AEREENENe SRR L ER
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ BYR SR A SRR M AT RN K ) A2.500F 4% (=5 -1 TR

in Hong Kong

reversionary approach)

IE2EAR:
The key inputs are:

(1) BEeE:
Term yield;

Q) EEkER R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuMRELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

£ 1 275%Z5%) ©

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be received, of 2.5% to 4%
(2019: 2.75% to 5%).

ERRREZRITHBNFNFEENTHHSNARE
i {E) A3%E4.5%( = F— 11 : 3.25%E5.50) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3% to 4.5% (2019: 3.25% to 5.5%).

s BA S HERMHT L RMIELER - 2B HEA
EERIRE  MERER  NEANNRE - THH5
BUASNFOBTARGAI4SETZGTAREA140
BL(ZE-N%: BTAREBAI0ETESTAREA200
BT«

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property and facilities. The
range of average market unit rent is from around HK$14.5
sqft/month to HK$140 sq ft/month (2019: HK$10 sq.ft/
month to HK$200 sq.ft/month).

The increase in the term yield would
result in a decrease in fair value.

BEREZMENEEHRL BE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mEENREHENG SR L BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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BE—FE_FFL_F=1—HIFE

15. IEWZ (&)

15. Investment Properties (continued)

ARRE HERER
FREFRBARENR 3 TESH ELRRSBAMARECHE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERLBRRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
(&S 2 B E REL(BHERE) RERRE(ERITLENFERBENRERERETUR AEREENENESHALER
Caparks in Hong Kong ~~~ Level 3 Investment method (termand BV BB\ ABRTE ML FAZE AE TG ) 20024 25% (=B — 1 TH

reversionary approach) £ 206%4.5%)
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TELEA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) BEeE:
Term yield;

Q) EEkER R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) BERELHmEETHS

of term income secured and to be received, of 2% to 4.25%
(2019: 2% to 4.5%).

ERRREZRITHBNFNFEENTHHSNARE
RITE) B2.5%%4.75%( ZE—NF : 25%F5%) ©
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2.5% 10 4.75% (2019: 2.5% to 5%).

BEEREEMENEEHRL BE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

Market unit rent of MHENREEERTSULEMELR - TERHEN TEEuAMLNeERALEE
individual unit EtERIAE  WERERMNEE - FHmEELEENT #m-

A22008 L3800 TL(ZF— N5 : HBA22008 7T E
4000%7) °

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage and facilities. The average market unit
rent is around HK$2,200/month to HK$3,800/month (2019:
around HK$2,200/month to HK§4,000/month).

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

15. Investment Properties (continued)

AREE fEERER
FRAMGERENR A TESH EiRRSHALAAEZRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERERRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
ST ES S E= REA(BHERE) BERRER(ZRITHBNERAEARRRIRATUR BARSENENSEH AL EE
Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~~ B)F B A M RETE ML FTEE £ RO ) 1. 25% %250 (= T ©
in PRC reversionary approach) —NE  1.25%%F2.5%) °
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TELEA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) BEeE:
Term yield;

Q) EEkER R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuMRELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 1.25% to 2.5%
(2019: 1.25% to 2.5%).

ERRRE(ZRIME BN EREUTSHENARE
friE) 51.75%E30%( ZF—NEF : 1.75%%3%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 1.75% to 3% (2019: 1.75% to 3%).

MBS REE TS A LRI - WEEZ AL
R EE - MBRER - DEA DR - FOTHELH
ENFHBTHREAOTARKEFTAREA210TA
RE(ZZ-NE: BIAABAI0TARBEET AR
R210TARK) «

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property and facilities. The
range of average market unit rent is from around RMB130
sq.m./month to RMB210 sq.m./month (2019: RMB130
sq.m./month to RMB210 sq.m./month).

BEEREEMENEEHRL BE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mHENRENENS SR L BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value,
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15. IEWZ (&)

15. Investment Properties (continued)

AREE fEERER
FREFBERRR A FESR EiRRSHALAAEZRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERERRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
A WAEESIE E= REA(BHERE) EAREZ(ZRITLBNERBENRRGERATUR BRREXHENE SR AL ERE
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ B)FR BRI A M BETE MBS AE R A ) B3 502 —NF . TR
in PRC reversionary approach) 3.500) ©
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TEZE: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) BEeE:
Term yield;

Q) EEkER R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) BERELHmEETHS

of term income secured and to be received, of 3.5% (2019:
3.50).

ERRREZRITHBNFNFEENTHHSNARE
(&) R4%(ZF—NEF : 4%) «

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 4% (2019: 4%).

BEEREEMENEEHRL BE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

Market unit rent of MHENRS EERMS I BALE  TERIMENE THEURSHENSERNLBE
individual unit tERIAR - ERIER  MEA DR - TOmBEMR #mn-

NFNBTHABRIBTARBCE-NE  BTHAE
R140TARE) -

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is around RMB135
sq.m./month (2019: RMB140 sq.m./month).

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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FEMBEHRRMEEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
16. REtEAA 2= 16. Interests in Associates
k- -Jak -3 3 —TNEF
2020 2019
TFET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
BWE KA 3EE™ Cost of investments, unlisted 223,816 223,816
FEM U EETE 2 m F & Share of post-acquisition profits and
Hih2mEUE - other comprehensive income,
BRI B net of dividends received 2,332,620 2,466,864
2,556,436 2,690,680
FTEBLRNANR T _ZBFR_F-NF+-H Details of the principal associates as at 31st December, 2020 and 2019

=—E Zﬁﬂaﬁkﬁéw.ﬁﬁ(b) are set out in note 32(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

16. Interests in Associates (continued)

BEABEAFICHMBESTHEE Summarised financial information of material associate
Zeta Estates Limited Zeta Estates Limited
k. -Jok -3 3 —TNEF
2020 2019
FETT FET
HKS000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 1,409,550 1,820,853
ERBEE Non-current assets 6,771,053 6,992,901
mENBE Current liabilities (260,074) (477,567)
SEmEEE Non-current liabilities (1,220,931) (1,331,662)
FEEREEEHE The above amounts of assets and
BHEUATAR : liabilities include the following:
"EME Investment properties 6,769,760 6,990,820
HeRREEE Cash and cash equivalents 157,474 62,754
A Revenue 580,240 300,793
BEMEZ AR BEZS) Change in fair value of investment properties (221,060) 33,320
rEEEEREZEER Loss and total comprehensive expense
ks for the year (184,147) (32,218)
S5 [Z 7R (5 Zeta Estates Limited Dividends from Zeta Estates Limited during the year
ZIRE 40,260 =
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REMGHRERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
16. REtE R A 2w () 16. Interests in Associates (continued)
BEXBELATIZCMESHEE(E) Summarised financial information of material associate
(continued)
Zeta Estates Limited(#&) Zeta Estates Limited (continued)

Lt AR E RS A B RETRER 2 Zeta  Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
Estates Limited## 2 2 BREE S BRI T ¢ carrying amount of the interest in Zeta Estates Limited recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

ko 2. 3 —E-NEF
2020 2019
FHET T
HK$°000 HK8'000
Zeta Estates Limited Z /R & E Net assets of Zeta Estates Limited 6,699,598 7,004,525
A& B7AZeta Estates Limited Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Zeta
Z R BREE (R EE R E Estates Limited (Proportion of the Group's
#Ez E310 £33.33%) ownership interest of 33.33%) 2,233,199 2,334,842
ERIZEER 2Bt R A2 EAEE R Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:
k-~ Yo -1 —ENEF
2020 2019
FET T
HKS000 HK$'000
REBRIERFEZ The Group's share of total comprehensive
2HE(ER) =i (expense) income for the year (7.647) 19,707
REBRZEBE AT Z Aggregate carrying amount of
AR EAE the Group's interests in these associates 323,237 355,838

BMERACEFEFRDEERMUNEB 2IKE  The major non-current assets of the associates represent investment
Y%A 5 /7,546,760,000/8 T (ZF — L4 © properties in Hong Kong amounting to HK$7,546,760,000
7,803,820,000 % 7T ) + HH2,645,087,000/7c (2019: HK$7,803,820,000) of which HK$2,645,087,000 (2019:
(ZZ—N4%F : 2,736,773,000/870) BB A LR - HK$2,736,773,000) was attributable to the Group. The following table
TRIBHAMBRBE AL EFSBWAZEAAM®E  shows the valuation techniques and inputs used in the determination
REERAIREYME 2 AR BERAABEE  of fair values for investment properties of associates as well as fair value
FElD 2K (E—ZE=F) * WIREIRAFTEIZE  hierarchy in which the fair value measurement are categorised (Levels 1
ZEE2HAUMEE AR BEE - to 3) based on the degree to which significant inputs used in the fair value
measurements is observable.
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BE—FE_FFL_F=1—HIFE

16. REtE AT 2= (E)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

16. Interest in Associates (continued)

ARRE fSERER
FRARGERENR A FESH ELHRSBALRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmiBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates  hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
fIREEZ BRYR E= REE(BHERR) RRRER(ERITLENERAENRREERA TR BARSEHENS SR AL EE
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand (YR HMA R BEE AT E £ AN ER) B2250E25%(—F Tk
in Hong Kong reversionary approach) — U © 22500%2.5%)°
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
FTE2YA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) MEkaEE
Term yield;

() EEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 2.25% to 2.5%
(2019: 2.25% to 2.5%).

ERRRZZRITHBNENFEENTAHSNARE
AT {E)R2.75%E3%(ZF—NVE : 275%%3%) °

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable

properties, of 2.75% to 3% (2019: 2.75% to 3%).

MEEMR S RERTSTHBALR - WZ RIS
fEAEE  MERER  WRANRE - FOMGEL
BENFHETHREAVERESTAREASET(CR
—NE: BYARER9ETEETHREASET) «
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$29
sqft/month to HK$50 sq.ft/month (2019: HK$29 sq.ft/
month to HK$55 sqft/month).

EEREEMENEEHAL BE
T

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

TEEALNENEERALRE
T -

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in a decrease in fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

16. Interest in Associates (continued)

ARRE fEERER
FRARGERENR A FESH EiRRBHALRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmLBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates  hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
IR EBZ IR E=H REA(BHERE) BARRE(ZRI T EYE RAENRMRERSE TR HBREENENeSHALER
Industrial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand  EYEEIMAN B EFEERNER) R2T5%E35%(—F Tk

in Hong Kong

reversionary approach)

IRBHA:
The key inputs are:

(1) ke
Term yield;

(2) EHEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

() EREuAmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

— NV < 306F3.5%) ©
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be received, of 2.75% to 3.5%
(2019: 3% 10 3.5%).

ERURE(ZRIME BN EEEUTHHSNARE
fIFT1E) 3.25%F 4% ( = F—LF : 35%F4%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.25% to 4% (2019: 3.5% to 4%).

MEEMR S RERTSATLBALER - WZ RIS
ftfEREE - MERIER - WEADARS - FOTSELH
eNTFHETHRBABSELZGTARBAIIETL(ZE
—NE: BYARER86ELEETAREAET) «
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$8.5
sq.ft/month to HK$33 sqft/month (2019: HK$8.6 sq.ft/
month to HK$36 sqft/month).

The increase in the term yield would
result in a decrease in fair value.

EEREENENEEHAL BE
T

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

BB HENEERDLBE
-

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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16. REtE AT 2= (E)

ARRE
FREREERRANR A
Investment properties  Fair value
held by the associates hierarchy
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

EERER

FESH

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

16.

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

Interest in Associates (continued)

EERERR2Y
Significant unobservable inputs

ELORSBALRRENRE
Relationship of unobservable
inputs for fair value

fIRERZEEYR E=R
Residential properties Level 3
in Hong Kong

ERERE-RETSUHR
Direct comparison approach -
based on market observable
transactions of similar properties.

IE2EA:
The key input is:

BEARZFER
Selling price per sqft

BEARZHEBNREN S BRI BINERS &Y )
REVBEEBHEEN T27,114BTE309058TL(ZF N
£ 128296781 E29,715870) RAIRIARBABBRN R AR o
Selling prices per sq.ft based on market observable
transactions of similar properties, of a range from HK$27,714
to HK$30,905 (2019: HK$28,296 to HK$29,715) per
sqft on gross floor area basis and adjusted to reflect the
conditions of the subject properties.

BEHROBERR LALEHAL
E{ER=pI

The increase in the selling price per
sqft would result in an increase in
fair value.
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FEMBHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

17. BBRBHIEARBEKEZEHM 17, Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

—E-=F —ZET—NF

2020 2019

FHET FET

HK$°000 HKZ000

FELTIRERES Unlisted investment funds 101,162 -
BREBMAHTAT Analysed for reporting purpose as:

FEREEE Non-current assets 39,296 -

mBEE Current assets 61,866 =

101,162 —

B B EBAR A EBETIER - AABESE Al of the above investments are stated at fair value and details of the fair
BFFEETIRT29(c) ° value measurements are set out in note 29(c).
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FEMBHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

18. FBEMEEKZFILZAALBER 18. Equity Instrument at Fair Value through Other

BZRATA Comprehensive Income
ot~ -2 3 —ENF
2020 2019
FRET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREMEEREEALEBERE Equity instument at FVTOCI (Note a)
AT B (Hiata) 33,457 38,705

Bzt - Notes:

@) ZeREASEFERSWEREMNIELTAT (@)  The amount represents the Group's 5% (2019: 5%) equity interest in an unlisted
BI5% (=T — NG : 5%)ARAE o company, which is principally engaged in property investment.

b) B LERESARAREBESIE - EREIRK  (b) The above investment is stated at fair value and details of the fair value
#129(c) ° measurements are set out in note 29(c).

19. X5 RHEADEYFRIE « TERTEREK  19. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and

Kige Deposits
k- Jamt -3 3 —TNEF
2020 2019
FAET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
R 5 EWGRIE Trade receivables 18,120 2,644
Hth e Yo R IE Other receivables 14,693 9,120
TBRERRRIES Prepayments and deposits 1,832 1,982

34,645 13,746
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FEMBHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

19. X5 REMBEIGRIAE - FEFERFK  19. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and
NIEE (&) Deposits (continued)

LT HREWFIE AT IR - ZE R AR Trade receivables represent rental receivable which are receivable on the
TRMBERERDIEIENK - BE W AZERAE  presentation of debit notes. Rental income is billed in advance at month-
A— B2 AERATEE - REE@FHIRME308/E  end. The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 days to its tenant.
EHTHEP - AEBEZSZFEKFIEIRE  The aging of these trade receivables of the Group, net of provisions and in

R ARIE AR B H 2 BRER AT accordance with the revenue recognition dates, is as follows:
—g-gF T hF
2020 2019
FHET TETT
HK$°000 HK8'000
308/ Within 30 days 14,697 2,632
31HZ60H 31-60 days 819 12
91HZE120H 91-120 days 968 -
121HZE180H 121-180 days 1,636 -
18,120 2,644

BE_Z_ZTFT_A=1+—8 AEEXHE As at 31st December, 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables
WHRIAHBRETREZEHA  RBEEHREHE  balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,423,000
- HBRmSES3,423,0008L(ZF—  (2019: HK$12,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
% 0 12,000/87T) ° FEEHIFRERT © 2,604,000  past due balances, HK$2,604,000 (2019: nil) has been past due 90 days
T(ZF—NF : B)EEHIORKLERKE ' It or more and is not considered as in default since the balances are mainly
YR REY  AEBBEEIBRAFEABER  with long term credit customers with good credit quality.

HHRBEERR -
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9. X5 MAMBEWKIEA
KIZE (1)

» FAMERSK

BRTHBASEERIEEEEUIN  XHRE
b EM IR 2 £ RRRE AR N7 ¥ EMIFHE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

19. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and
Deposits (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

—S-®F  —FT-NF
2020 2019
FETT FEIT
HK$’000 HKZ000
ARE(TARKE]) Renminbi (“RMB") 90 =
Ex(ZEx]) United States Dollars ("USD") 8,229 3,708
8,319 3,708
HE_Z-_THEF+-_A=1+—H  HMEKHK As at 31st December, 2020, included in other receivables are balance of

HA 8 %ﬁ%a‘é;’fﬂ 190,000 L (ZF— 1L F :
3,570,000/ L) * F B AB5% (=T — N F :
5.125%) + R AL ERK(EE -

20. B E R

RBEEHAR - AEBEFAESE(ZZE—NEF 3
) EWER - EEFFEHRLTS%E15%(ZF
— L% : 5.75%FE15%) ° Eﬁb’/‘_z_7¢+ A
=T —HZERKER - EF1E(ZZT—NF :
VE) AEERREER  2E(ZZ— jLE-szD
REERRAEERRRE(ZZE—NF : 8)RE
BRREER YR-ZE-_—F=AZ==-F_N
Ft+—A(—E—h&FE: —E-_TFE+—HE-F

HK$4,190,000 (2019: HK$3,570,000) which bears interest of 5% (2019:
5.125%) and is repayable on demand.

20. Loan Receivables

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has loan receivables from
five (2019: three) parties which bear fixed interest rate ranging from
4.75% to 15% (2019: 5.75% to 15%) per annum. In respect of five loan
receivables as at 3 1st December, 2020, one (2019: one) is unsecured and
guaranteed, two (2019: two) are secured and guaranteed and two (2019:
nil) are unsecured and unguaranteed, and have maturity dates ranging from
March 2021 to November 2024 (2019: November 2020 to November
2024) and are analysed as follows:

ZHFE+—A)EE - EHAT
—EEF —E-NEF
2020 2019
TFHET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEREEE Non-current assets 110,009 175,152
MENEE Current assets 139,159 44,438
249,168 219,590
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FEMBRERME(E)
HE-F—FF == —AILEE
20. W ER @)
BE-—Z-TF+-A=+—8 EKEX

HEEHF @%ﬁs, 1 63,000/%nm5%a+m§réﬂa(f
— L& : 925,000 7T) ° ER GBS

29(b) °

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—08 &85

137,225,000/ 7T (ZZ — /L4 : 141,590,0007%
TMERERERENES(ZT—NLF  EF)

FEARER - EERANRERONBRAT » &

SETAFHEXREHEPELEARR - ZEUKER

*”ﬁ#%ﬂ’]gi}ﬁﬁ&ﬁik“m REBRE
8 DR 45 L 4 R o T 2 A ) R R LR ) S R 3B

(=

BEMEE M LASN -

BRTHESEER 28 AEEZ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

20. Loan Receivables (continued)

Included in the carrying amount of loan receivables as at 31st December,
2020 is accumulated impairment losses of HK$5,163,000 (2019:
HK$925,000). Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 29(b).

As at 31st December, 2020, the carrying amount of loan receivables
amounting to HK$137,225,000 (2019: HK$141,590,000) are pledged
with collaterals such as debentures (2019: debentures). The Group is not
permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals in the absence of default by the
borrower. There has not been any significant changes in the quality of the
collateral held for the loan receivables. The Group has not recognised a loss
allowance for the loan receivables as a result of these collaterals.

The Group's loan receivables that are denominated in currencies other than

R EFIZ T3 G BA5IEHE the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:
- Jom- 3 3 —FNF
2020 2019
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK3'000
e usb 170,238 175,152
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FEMBHEME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

21. ReENIRELEFE

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents

—EZ —ENF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
RekReEE: Cash and cash equivalents:
RITFRRIRE Cash at bank and in hand 42,423 64,949
REERRITIE K Short-term bank deposits with
(RR=EARZNE) original maturity within three months 143,752 152,082
meaRenRzRER Cash and cash equivalents for consolidated
BHEEEDHT statement of cash flows analysis 186,175 217,031

ATE-—TEF+— A=+ —H ReKRESEEF
ZBITHHBAEH0.39%E2.43%( = F— L4F -

1.53%Z2.43%) °

BRTHBESEERZEEEENUIN

SEEETHIEREMTIFHE

annum.

e &I The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in currencies other than

As at 31st December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents carry prevailing
market rates ranging from 0.39% to 2.43% (2019: 1.53% to 2.43%) per

the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

—E-ESF —ZE-NF

2020 2019

FHET FHIT

HK$°000 HK$000

AR RMB 19 20
e usD 9,764 7,459
9,783 7,479
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& B35 4R R PR (48) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
22. B&AR 22. Share Capital
B FET
Number of
shares HK3'000
BEEBITRER Issued and fully paid:
R=_ZE—HNF—HA—A8" At 1st January 2019, 31st December, 2019
—E-hFt+-_A=+—HRK and 1st January 2020
—E-TF—A—H 1,241,054,945 681,899
[B18% K s SHAIAR 19 Repurchase and cancellation of shares (386,000) -
RZEZEF+-—A=+—H At 31st December, 2020 1,240,668,945 681,899
REBEZE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HIFE - &2 During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Company repurchased
AIE BRI AR « SRR T its own ordinary shares through Stock Exchange as follows:
B EEE
BRBER €31 ON::k-2.0))
Purchase price per share Aggregate
10 RI{EE consideration paid
ol S A BR (R 81 B Highest Lowest (before expenses)
Number of ordinary BT & FET
EIfgA 8 Month of repurchase shares repurchased HKS HKS$ HK$000
—E-FFAHA May 2020 200,000 1.25 1.22 245
—E-TFHA May 2020 186,000 1.22 1.22 227

LA E Bl 7 EmAR I E et ds - A AEZMEZA  The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchased. None of the
ARBZE_Z-_TF+-_HA=+—BIEFEAR Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's
BEE  HEIBEEMARE L EHHES ° listed securities during the year ended 3 1st December, 2020.
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REMBHRERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

P T, = = — I EE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

23, RIEFIEEE 23. Deferred Tax Liabilities

MAEERBEFEEERANELCHEREREE  The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements

;AT : thereon during the current and prior years:
TitigER
REMRE
Land
appreciation
AREE tax and Hfth Wit
Fair value other tax Other Total
FET FET FET FEr
HK§000 HK8000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZE—NF—H—H At 1st January, 2019 157,748 12,682 451 170,881
REANBB=(BE) (Credit) charge to profit or loss
kR for the year (1,906) 1,260 285 (361)
BEREER Currency translation difference - (427) = (427)
R-ZE—NF At 31st December, 2019
+=—A=+—H 155,842 13,515 736 170,093
RENB1B=(EE) (Credit) charge to profit or loss
kR for the year (4,578) 29 497 (4,052)
BESREER Currency translation difference - 808 - 808
R-TE-T4HF At 31st December, 2020
+=A=+—-H 151,264 14,352 1,233 166,849

RMEBAR  AEEHEBAIEFERIGH 2K At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
B ABIEEER3,823,000ET(ZF—LF :  approximately HK$3,823,000 (2019: HK$3,886,000) available to offset
3,886,000/87C) » MNEATAF AN GEH - I against future assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
BT TUABIRERIRLETIAEE © in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

ZEARBATIAEE AT ARR RS These unused tax losses have no expiry date.
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FEMBEHRRMEEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
24, ENFIERESER 24. Creditors and Accruals
k- -Jak -3 3 —TNEF
2020 2019
TFET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
RS ENFIE Trade creditors 193 340
L fE TR Other creditors 9,561 15,737
HPE® Tenants deposits 12,778 13,579
EEtEEER Accrued operating expenses 3,323 2,841
25,855 32,497
REEZ X GRNFIERERZB R RAT : The ageing of the trade creditors of the Group in accordance with invoice
date is as follows:
k- -Jak -3 3 —TNEF
2020 2019
TFET FET
HK$°000 HK$000

30HA Within 30 days 193 340
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FEMBERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
5. T E AR 25. Operating Leases Commitments

NEEGYEME WA B44,421,00087E(=ZF—7.  Property rental income earned during the year was HK$44,421,000 (2019:

£ :49532000/870) c RWEMEZHEHRTE  HK$49,532,000). The properties held had committed leases mainly

H—EZERF(-T—h&F: —Z1F) - R#kEH  running for the next one to five years (2019: one to six years). At the end

Ko AREEBBETTREE 2 EEHEPARKEZD  of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum

ZHEMNRAT : lease payments as lessor under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

- - 3. 3 —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET &1
HK$°000 HK$000

ARHTIR BV EE A E R Undiscounted fixed lease payments receivables

FERAEFTAT : on leases are as follows:

R—F2ZA Within one year 40,128 35,647
RE=F In the second year 22,572 33,678
RE=F In the third year 14,329 20,256
REME In the fourth year 9,824 13,673
MERF In the fifth year 264 9,824
EhFE After five year - 264

87,117 113,342
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REMBERERME(E)
BE-—E-FF+ =1 AILEE
26. RIKEFIFTE

AEE 2 BRIBBERING BB L2 ERH
FETEI(TBRRAGE ) RREBRES RN
—EETFE AR zaEes BI([BEes
) ZEAZEERAERBZEESRR
B BXRABEZERESHEE - ERES
AHEIRSZAT - RABEERARGEIKEZRER
BEBEE2ERZRINGTEREERESHE
FIER_ZETZF+ - A - BRUARMABZE
BEF2EBEDE

HRaBEeta8kE  EERASEZERA
RBEFABMHS 25% @ 38 %1% R A30,000
BIL(ZZF—NF : 30,0008 7T) ©

BEERKTENESREREERAEEET AR
BEEAFH S Z50MHN - MEREEEZTEHEE
B2 S RE R AR BRG] - WIREZ
EFAE AR A EE 2 B HRSE - REE=
E-NFTA=T—BLEFEARRZ=ZZ=Z
FH-A=T—HILFERAN ' WEERKZEMAE
HMBERERE - RIREHR - WEREES R LB
R RET 1T AEE 2 AT R SR FE T
B o

RBE_ZE-_ZF+_A=+—HILFEEAN ' &K
EEE SN2 RIKEFF IR A302,0007 7T
(ZZ—h% : 300,000/87T) °

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

26. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme"”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme
or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group's
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant
income, with the mandatory cap of HK$30,000 (2019: HK$30,000).

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the employees
and the Group at the rate of 5% of the employee’s basic salary. Where
there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the amount of forfeited contributions. During the years ended 31st
December, 2019 and 31st December, 2020, there were no forfeited
contributions used to set off contributions. At the end of the reporting
period, no forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
ORSO Scheme, are available to reduce the contributions payable in future
years.

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Group made
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of HK$302,000 (2019:
HK$300,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

REMBERERME(E)
BE-F-FF 1 -F=1—HLFE
27. Related Parties Transactions and Balances

27. B H R 5 NER

REBEE-ZE-ZFE+—-F=1+HIFEERN A& During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Group had transactions
EEBREAL RS REHIT and balances with related parties as follows:
() BEBMWAEESH: (a) Related party transactions:
3.3 —FNF
2020 2019
FET T&T
HK$°000 HK8'000
UWARNBIHEEASE N EBM%E A major shareholder with significant influence,
BeA £ E AR AT (B Allied Group Limited ("AGL")
@ | RERBEAT and its subsidiaries
—mASERERNES — Rent, estate management and
ST T Zo e 2 air-conditioning fees charged to the Group 1,163 1,266
— (A A= B UL B A BB A T AR AS K — Internal audit service and management
S AT GRS E B information system service fee charged to
the Group 360 360
— (AR £ B R N L B — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 252 230
e EEz —MNEAR— A subsidiary of AGL, Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited
BREERAR([FEE]D R ("SHK") and its subsidiaries
HB AR
— RE EHRENRF S UA — Interest income earned by the Group 4,466 579
BRI AT REREKBAT Ultimate holding company, TACI, and its subsidiary
— RSB GRENAF S — Interest income earned by the Group 779 —
— AR EENE SRS — Management fee charged to the Group 2,100 1,900
— 7SR U &) AR 75 2 — Service fees expenses charged to the Group - 100
— AL EYERR H 1t B B — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 1 1
/N Associates
—REEEKHRE — Dividend received by the Group 65,215 =

(b) FEEEBARFHH

(b) Key management personnel compensation

FTEZEAENTHHETWESEE@EAXE  The remuneration of key management is determined by the remuneration

RSB amETE o committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

RAEEENRENTFAAGEEEEEAS +  The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of the
HAEE 2 FiERMEE10 -

Company, who are the Directors, for the year is set out in note 10.



148 Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2020

& B35 4R R PR (48) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
27. BBt AR 5 NEESE) 27. Related Parties Transactions and Balances (continued)
() FREFHHEER (c) Related party balances
3.3 —TNEF
2020 2019
FRET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
NG| Associates
— Efb s — Other receivable 23,209 90,229
— H A e R — Other payable - 17,236
HEEEREKBAT AGL and its subsidiaries
— Efb et =g — Other payable (included in other creditors)
(GTAEfLRENFIR) 188 110
B4 S22 —RIME AR — A subsidiary of AGL,
FEE K EH B AT SHK and its subsidiaries
— W E R (HT72i) — Loan receivable (Note ) 77,500 78,000
— E A FE Y BRX — Other receivable (included in other receivables)
(FIAE M EYSR) 574 578
—BRZZHEAR A subsidiary of TACI
— RWCE TR (K 2t — Loan receivable (Note i) 32,941 —
— H A FE U BRR — Other receivable (included in other receivables)
(FEAE M EUYRERSR) 840 -
REBEE-Z-_ZR_FT—-AF+-H=+—H Durng the year ended 31st December, 2020 and 2019, the Group had
b AEBEEFMEALTZRS MEHRIT transactions and balances with related parties as follows:

ENBAEEARENBAR ZERZKHE AEE  The amounts due to AGL and its subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
o ERN BN RRERERER and repayable on demand.

FEU () Bif e R Rl BRI R - RS K% The amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest free and
‘)ﬁﬁlié’]ﬁ?’xﬁﬂﬁﬁ i%- RS BTEAER have no fixed repayment term. In the opinion of the Directors, the amount
WMEHRET—EANEE - Bt BERREE  is expected to be recovered within twelve months after the end of the

o reporting period and therefore is classified under current assets.
BRSSP EK ETARAIERNBE S  None of the above related party transactions constitutes a connected
SFERR S - transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in the Listing

Rules.
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REMIERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
27. BB R 5 RAEER(E) 27. Related Parties Transactions and Balances (continued)
() FRABRASHERGE) (c) Related party balances (continued)
HieE - Notes:

@) EREZAERBER AER EFFXRE () The loan receivable bears interest of 5.75% per annum, is unsecured, guaranteed,

5.75% HFR T =NF+— AEE - Bt AR repayable in November 2024 and is included in loan receivables.
WERH -

() EEREFAERMEN  BER FF XA () The loan receivable bears interest of 4.75% per annum, is unsecured,

475%WHER=ZE_=F/AEE Bt AEBK unguaranteed, repayable in June 2023 and in included in loan receivables.
=GRl
28. EANEREIRE 28. Capital Risk Management

NEBERHERURRAER > BERERFE  The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
meE s WiEBELER R ER 2 FE - BIREA  be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
WAL o AREME Y K EBAEZRIF  shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.

A The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
REBZ BRNEBBRATEA AEE#Z - 82 The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners
FERA Rt - of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

EETHEMEREE - tEAIILERM2—3R &  The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As a part of this

BEBEARKANEZHEREAHB AR - &K review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated

EEEBRBEEEsERAVERFEBIMIEE R with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,

R[N T {8 LR B B A4S - the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and repurchase of shares.
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REMGHRERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
29. &t T A 29. Financial Instruments
(a) £mMmIAZER (a) Categories of financial instruments
ot .- - 3 —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
SMEE Financial assets
FRBRIEANEEREZS/MEE  Financial assets at FVTPL 101,162 =
FHREMEEPERA R EERE Equity instrument at FVTOCI
ZEART A 33,457 38,705
BBERATTE eREE Financial assets at amortised cost 491,365 538,614
625,984 577,319
eRaR Financial liabilities
RESH ARG 2 At amortised cost 22,532 46,892
(b) HMBRBREEBFRRBE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

AREZTEZSRTABEEBBERANAEE  The Group's major financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL,
REZEREAE BBAMEZEKEZARE  equity instrument at FVTOCI, trade receivables, other receivables, loan
BEREZBEATE XZEEER  HEKE
R RRER  BR(EN)BZQRERR  REe
MReEE RPEMNFE - HRNFHIERE
Fi#g - 2R ITAFBREMEHRE - %%
ST AGHZARBETSRERR(SMNERR - F
RE REMERRAR) EERBRIREER o )
B o TXEIMARIES SRR K - Asm O Mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of the Group
SEBECEREEZZRRK  LWEIERERg Manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
B ELEGES: > i o are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

receivables, amounts due from (to) associates, cash and cash equivalents,
trade creditors, other creditors and tenants deposits. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
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(b) FMAISEEREEH MR BRGR)

mGmEE
() SMEER

AEBEERZRYRR - R BUERER - Bk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group has trade receivables, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade creditors that are denominated in foreign currencies
which are different from the functional currency of the respective group
entity and accordingly expose the Group to currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency exposure. However, the management monitors the related
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in currency other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

gE aE
Assets Liabilities
2020 2019 2020 2019
FET FEIT TFET FAEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKEZ'000
ETT usD 188,231 186,319 - —
AREE RMB 109 20 - -
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REMBRRMEGR)
BE-F=FF+=f=1—AULFE
29. E@M T A

(b) FMAISEEREEH MR BRGR)

mEmAR (&)

() SMNEEE(E)

SNEBRE
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AEETERAZARE AR

BUREDT

]
X

REBR  SEZNERREARAREHEEM
SUEEATE  BMERESITTMERS -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group's principal subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong and their
transactions are mostly denominated and settled in HK$, USD and RMB.
As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Directors thus consider the Group's foreign
currency exposure is not significant. To the extent that the Group's revenue
and expenditure are not naturally matched in the same currency and to
the extent that there are timing differences between receipt and payment,
the Group will be exposed to foreign currency exchange gains and losses
arising from transactions in currencies other than its functional currency.

The Group mainly exposes to the currency of RMB.
Sensitivity analysis

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk due to RMB is considered not
significant to the Group and no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk
The Group's fair value interest rate risk related primarily to loan receivables.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as its cash equivalents
and loan receivables which are subject to floating interest rate. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy. However,
the Group closely monitors interest rate movements and will enter into
new banking facilities when favourable pricing opportunities arise. The
management monitors the Group's interest exposure and will consider
hedging interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's change in interest rate is mainly attributable to its bank
balances which is considered not significant to the Group and no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

(i) Other price risk

The Group's unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk
in relation to these financial assets.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks at the reporting date.



154 Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2020

REMBRRMEGR)
BE-F=FF+=f=1—AULFE
29. E@M T A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Other price risk (continued)
Equity instrument at FVTOCI

If the business enterprise value of the underlying equity securities has been
5% (2019: 5%) higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
investment revaluation reserve at 31st December, 2020 would have
increased/decreased by HK$1,673,000 (2019: HK$1,935,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI.

Financial assets at FVTPL

If equity prices were 5% (2019: nil) higher/lower while all other variables
were held constant, profit before tax would increase/decrease by
HK$5,058,000 (2019: nil) for the Group as a result of the changes in fair
value of equity securities at FVTPL and financial assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from potential losses result from
default on obligations by counterparties. The maximum exposure to the
Group is represented by the carrying amount of its financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables consists of rental and estate management fees receivable
from tenants. Credit checks are carried out before commencement of
tenancies and on-going credit evaluation ensures any doubtful receivables
are provided for as required. The exposure to credit risk is limited because
the trade receivables are secured by tenant deposits. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced and
thus no loss allowance was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group had a concentration of credit risk as the loan receivables are
advanced to a few independent third parties and related parties. As at
31st December, 2020, the loan receivables will be matured ranging from
March 2021 to November 2024 (2019: November 2020 to November
2024). Management had assessed the credit rating of the borrowers
for the secured and unsecured loan receivables of HK$249,168,000
(2019: HK$219,590,000). In addition, loans interest have been settled in
accordance with agreement terms.

The Group assessed the loss allowances for other receivables with gross
carrying amounts of HK$15,003,000 (2019: HK$9,120,000) on 12m
ECL basis. The expected loss of other receivables are assessed individually,
taking into account the historical default experience and internal credit rating
of the debtors as well as forward-looking information, as appropriate. There
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group has no other significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

In addition, the Group reassesses the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
the 12m ECL for other financial assets at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. In this
regard, management of the Group considers that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed credit risk grading
to categorise exposures according to the degree of risk of default. The
Group uses publicly available financial information and its own historical
repayment records, or, where appropriate, engages the Valuer to rate its
major customers and debtors. The Group's exposure and the credit quality
of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) MEEREEEBERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
15 R m AR B EF G (#F) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
REBAREERBF R EBEATER - The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following
categories:
PIERE SRR Hti &R E
Internal credit Jiliate X 5B AR Other financial
rating Description Trade debtors assets
Ve R G ERERBIERE R E L RS EEEE - 1218 AFEEE
RAEABHIRARADER BEERE &1
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
R (E YNGR SS iU 5 ] 2 EFEHEEEE - 1218 AFEHREE
(ERERYSE I S AN BEERE 18
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
(3= R EIRMER féIFE MEDK MR E R ZEESEEEE - EHFEBEEEE -
LEERBR=EIE M EEERE EEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — Llfetlme ECL -
credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
=i BERBEEZEEZEERRE 2EFEHEEER - 2 HFEBEEEE -
EERE EERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
FE8H BRI L2 AT AR B B A I R £ K HIHE R FEIH e
AEEN EER ALY
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial

IRE#E MFAHEH
Gross il
12(BA %21 carrying ECL
SHERIESEETIR  AMEHTR WHEHER amount provided
—E-EF Pt sk External Internal 12m or FET FET
2020 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$’000 HKS3'000
BB TRz €8 E Financial assets at amortised costs
FEWE K
Loan receivables
REERT—EEZE M5 e TiEA K2 B 121E A 77,500 432
&Rz —EH B AR TEEEE B E
Long-term loan to a Notes ¢, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL
subsidiary of a major
shareholder
REERT—HRAR BisE d, f TNER 1R 12184 32,941 -
NG TEEEEESE
Long-term loan to a Notes d, f N/A Low risk 12m ECL
fellow subsidiary
REHERT @B Mitae TiE A s 128 A 96,890 3,720
F=F TEEMEEE1E
Short-term loan to an Notes a, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
REERTF—EEY &b e TEFA iy 12188 45,000 945
F=F TEEMEEEE
Short-term loan to an Notesb, e  N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
REHERT—EE  MiEde A s 1218 A 2,000 66
F=h TEEEEESE
Short-term loan to an Notesd, e  N/A Low risk 12m ECL

independent third party
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(b) FMAISEEREEH MR BRGR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
SERBERREFEG(#E) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
IRE#E FHES
Gross  E5iEEH
12(E A2 carrying ECL
SHERIESEETIR  AEEHTR FHEHER amount provided
—E-EF Pt s External Internal 12m or FET FET
2020 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK3'000 HK$'000
R EWERR 19 TNEA KRB 2 HFE A E E R 1E 14,697 -
Trade receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
R 5 EMWERTK 19 TNEA R 2 HITE IS E R 1E 3,423 -
Trade receivables N/A Watch list Lifetime ECL
H b fE AR R 19 e A {liWE 121 A 15,003 310
TEEEEEE
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL
RITHERR 21 N3 A {iWE 12{& A 186,158 -
TEEEEEE
Bank balances N/A Low risk 12m ECL
JEUSTES:  A BIBR TR 27 e A {liWE 1216 A 23,209 -
TEEEEE1E
Amounts due from associates N/A Low risk 12m ECL
#8=+ Total 496,821 5473
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
SERBERREFEG(#E) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
BREAE TEHEE
Gross  [E5iBREHE
121 A sk 2 HA carrying ECL
HNBEERTAR  AEEERIA  FEEGEEERE amount provided
—E-NEF FiaE External Internal 12m or FET FHET
2019 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$000 HK$000
BRME R ETIRZ &8 ¥ E Financial assets at amortised costs
FEUE X
Loan receivables
RHERT —(EEL B a, e TEF 1K B 1218 A 97,515 363
F=F TBHE B &S
Long-term loan to an Notes a, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
REAERT—EEE Mt c e i A {liwE 12{& A 78,000 -
&Rz —HKEAF TBHEEEE
Long-term loan to a Notes ¢, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL
subsidiary of a major
shareholder
REERT B b e TER NS 1218 A 45,000 562
FE=F TBHEEEE
Short-term loan to an Notes b, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL

independent third party
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FEMBHERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B F - E - FFES = — HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
2R T E () 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) HMBREEREBRBRRBUERE) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
15 R m AR B EF G (#F) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
REAE EHEE
Gross  EEREE
1218 A5 25 carrying ECL
SMNBEERTR  ARMEERAR TEHEEES amount  provided
—E—NE FiaE External Internal 12m or FET FAET
2019 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$'000 HK$'000
R 5 FEWHRTR 19 TNEA K2 g2 = HITE A= B R 1E 2,632 -
Trade receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
R 5 FEWHRTR 19 TNEA HE= = HITE A= B R 1E 12 -
Trade receivables N/A Watch list Lifetime ECL
HAtb U R TR 19 TNEA K2 g2 121E A 9,120 -
TEEE B8
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL
RITEERR 21 N3 A 2 B 121E A 217,014 -
TEEMEEEE
Bank balances N/A Low risk 12m ECL
JEUSESE i A BIBR TR 27 e A {liWE 1218 A 90,229 -
TEEEEEE
Amounts due from associates N/A Low risk 12m ECL

485t Total 539,522 925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The loan is secured by certain shares of the borrower's subsidiaries and guaranteed
by an independent listed company and an individual personal guarantor.

(b)  The loan is secured under a debenture incorporating second fixed and floating
charge over its undertaking, property and assets of the borrower and guaranteed by
an individual personal guarantor.

(¢)  Theloan is unsecured and guaranteed by a subsidiary of AGL, SHK.

(d)  The loan is unsecured and unguaranteed.

(e)  The Group engaged independent external expert to perform ECL assessment on
the balances. The ECL is assessed by reference to the probability of default and loss
given default for the relevant credit rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies, and adjusted for forward-looking factors that are available.

(f)  The ECL assessment on the balances is performed by the management. The ECL
is assessed by reference to the probability of default and loss given default for
the relevant credit rating grades published by external credit rating agencies, and
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are available.
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(b) FMAISEEREEH MR BRGR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
S E MR REFE(1E) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
TRAE BRI EFMEMEWFIENEER  The following tables show recondiliation of loss allowances that has been
.2 Ak recognised for loan receivables and other receivables.
12{8AR
RBERESR
12m ECL
FET
HK$'000
RZZE-NF—HA—H As at 1st January, 2019 741
RZZ—hF—H—H Changes due to financial instruments

Rz eI AZE : recognised as at 1st January, 2019:

—BREREREE — Impairment losses reversed (382)
EEREE NS EE New financial assets originated or purchased 562
P& R = Exchange adjustments 4
RZBE—NF+=—A=+—H As at 31st December, 2019 925
WZZ-ZTF—H—H Changes due to financial instruments

BRZ oRTEZE : recognised as at 1st January, 2020:

—EHERBERE — Impairment losses recognised 4,484
EXIBE N EeRERE New financial assets originated or purchased 67
b R EE Exchange adjustments 3)

R=F_FTFFT-_H=+—H

As at 31st December, 2020 5,473
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(b) FMAISEEREEH MR BRGR)

mEEREE
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ReFEAEEBEARARENNKY  REEEZ
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AEEZERBR(BEISENIE - EAER
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(0 &MIAZARREE

ETARBZEREENERERAREAAEE
A8 TRIMEREREENA A BEWFE
ENER(ERHEREFAANGERTLRERS2
20 URRAAREEFETHSHA UBAISG
WRE - SRR BEAESBEARBEMRSIP
MER(F—E=H) °

BWEBRAT —T_TFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The Group's financial liabilities (including trade creditors, other creditors,
tenant deposits and amounts due to associates) are repayable on demand.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.
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R-S-SF+_A=+—HZARBERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2020

ot~ Jot- =3 3
2020
E—ik EZ® B=8® #st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEIT FEIT FEIT FHT
HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS$000
BRBFE AR EERE  Financial assets at FVTPL
ZEREE - 61,866 39,296 101,162
FREMEEBEE LR Equity instrument at
BEREZRATA FVTOCI
- - 33,457 33,457
R-ZE—NE+—A=+—RAZRREBEHH Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2019
—E-NF
2019
F—R FEMH FE=M #mEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FET FET FHET FHET
HK§000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK3'000
FREMEmMMEE AR Equity instrument at
BEREZRATA FVTOCI
= = 38,705 38,705

RAFERN  WREE—H  F_RRE=RZ

M A% -

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 in the current year.
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DRBEARAT —S-TFEFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used.)

Fair value as at
31st December,
IBIZE CE)f
2020 2019 SARERN RHEATRIESH EEREBR2Y EORSHALRRECAR
SHEE FET F#r  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets HK$ 000 HKS000  hierarchy  and key inputs inputs inputs for fair value
ARREAABEAEL 61,866 - TR SREERMIBE AR 0yl
SRAE F LTS Level 2 Quoted price provided by financil N/A N/A
& insfitutions
Unlisted fund investrment
dlassified s financial
assets at FUTPL
AEREALEEREY 39,296 - =B CRMERE/RE HEEFE  NER R
SHAE LS RS Level 3 RUEBRRERZRIERKR  N/A N/A
i KZIR
Unlisted fund investment Quoted price provided by financial
dlassified s financial insttutions which considered net
assefs at FVTPL asset values of special purpose

vehicles derived from underying
investments
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FEMBERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

. R T A 29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(o &MIAZARMRENEHE)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)
TZRAZt-BeARRE
Fair value as at
31st December,
BIEE R E
2020 2019 SARERN RERTRIESR EZRiERN EERRSBALRREZRE

HRE TR ##r  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable

Financial assets HK$'000 HK§000  hierarchy  and key inputs inputs inputs for fair value

ARRERAEENG 33451 38,705 3 BHNEE (ERATLENZRSE BARRENANGERLLER
B0 ERRE, level 3 Assetbased approach. ZHRBRERETURORRMA  THh-

RALA I A EAREE) B275%E
PEAR O TE2HA: 3250 (ZE-NUF : S00ZE35%)

Unlisted equity securties The key inputs are: Tem yield, taking into account of yield ~ The increase in the term yield would
classified as equity generated from comparable properties  result in a decrease in fair value.
instrument at FVTOCI () B and adjustment to reflect the certainty

(i) Temn yield; of term income secured and to be
received, of 2.75% to 3.25% (2019:
(i) ERUaE 3010 3.5%).
(i) Reversionary yield;
BRUAZ(ZRIMLENENG GERAZHENEERAAER
(i) pEffL R FENmAHEWARENTE)RE Th:

(i) Market unit rent; and

() BRZ BSR4
(v) Discount for lack of control and
lack of marketability

325023 75%( 25— 1 F  35%E
4%)

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.25% to 3.75% (2019:

3.5%t0 4%).

The increase in the reversionary yield
would resultin a decrease in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value as at
31t December,
IBT2E TNF
2020 2019 SARERN HEATRIERH ESRiBRN EERRSBELRREZRE
SHRE FET ##7r  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets HK$'000 HK§000  hierarchy  and key inputs inputs inputs for fair value
isENASRREETSTLIEY THELHENENE SR L RE
L TERNMEAAGENRE m Bne

BRER  MERIRME « 1905
BN THETARBAETE
BEARBAIOERL(CE-NE &
YAIREANERZETIREA180
AT

Market unit rent compares with direct
market comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property and facilities. The range of
average market unit rent is from around
HK$30 sqft/month to HK$170 sqft/
month (2019: HK$30 sqft/month to
HK$180 sq ft /month).

e b SR S R (Z 3
frAMEEE) R2B0%(-F-NE
205%) °

Discount for lack of control and lack
of marketability, taking into account
median control premium, of 28.0%
(2019: 20.5%).

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair value.

ReBHAT R ANRENE
EYNAEETE

The increase in the discount for lack of
control and lack of marketability would
resultin a decrease in fair value.
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REMGHRERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

29. @@ T R 29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(0 &MIAZARMBEENEGE) (c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

FoRLHEEL R EEENERE Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

assets

BHEB SWBEB
BRoRRE Rtt2@mbkz
BEZ BRAREE
eREE BEEZRFIR

ZI LT ZI L

EeRE ExES

Unlisted Unlisted

fund equity

investment securities

classified classified

as financial as equity
assets at instrument at 5]
FVTPL FVTOCI Total
FET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
RZE-NF—H— As at 1st January, 2019 - 37,664 37,664
REMEE 2 4 uﬁzfm Total gain in OCI - 1,041 1,041
R=Z—NFE+=A=+—H  Asat31st December, 2019 - 38,705 38,705
BE Purchased 38,750 = 38,750
8% 2 s Total gain in profit or loss 546 - 546
REAM2E 2 2518 Total loss in OCl - (5,248) (5,248)
R-EZTFF+—A=+—H As at 31st December, 2020 39,296 33,457 72,753

BUWRREB(ZZ—NF : Wa) /IFLMESE  The total gain and loss (2019: gain) represent fair value gain or loss on
KREMIELFMEREBSNRABEREZEIE  unlisted fund investment and unlisted equity securities and are included in
B DRETANZRIEREAAEEELEZSME  "net increase in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL" and “change in fair
EFIE MM ERE M EERER AR EERE  value of equity instrument at FVTOCI” respectively.

AT ENMARBEEZS] -

EEZRAIRE R AT AREMIEREZFHEM  The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial assets
cHMEERCRBENREBEEAEQAREMBAR  and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
HE - financial statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Activities

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

30. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
HEMIERSEY -  MEEHEENAELESE  financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
MAAKEEREEEESABESRBERTHLE  arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or

future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of

FEfHEE
EMERR LTFRER
Dividlend Amounts due 5]
payable to associates Total
FET FET FET
HK3'000 HKS'000 HK8'000
RZZE—NFE—HA—H At 1st January, 2019 - 7,416 7,416
EEMARE Dividend declared 124,106 - 124,106
MERSIN Financing cash flows (124,106) 9,820 (114,286)
R-E—NF+-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2019 - 17,236 17,236
BEEMRE Dividend declared 31,026 - 31,026
BMERSN Financing cash flows (31,026) (17,236) (48,262)

R-_ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H

At 31st December, 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

31. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company

(a) Company’s Statement of Financial Position

k- ol 3. 3 —T-NF
2020 2019
FET T
HKS$000 HK$000
HE ASSETS
ERBRE Non-current assets
Y% - BRE R Property, plant and equipment 226 286
REB AR ZI&%E Investments in subsidiaries 1,914 1,914
FEUTHT B A BIBR SR Amounts due from subsidiaries 694,485 613,658
(e Club memberships 4,261 4,261
700,886 620,119
mENEE Current assets
FERTBRER « 2 R E MU FRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 977 1,047
AIER B AT 75 Income tax recoverable 657 -
RekReFE Cash and cash equivalents 168,032 160,156
169,666 161,203
HEE Total assets 870,552 781,322
Ha EQUITY
(@ Share capital 681,899 681,899
& Reserves 157,324 92,776
839,223 774,675
" LIABILITIES
mEAR Current liabilities
FERTFRIE K FEET B Creditors and accruals 4,100 3,623
FERTATISHR Income tax payable - 283
FESTHT B A BIBR 5K Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,229 2,741
HER Total liabilities 31,329 6,647
RESRAR Total equity and liabilities 870,552 781,322

REMBRAKRER —F =

—F=At+N\B&E
ERRBREETE  YHTIEFARESE

FpiE

are signed on its behalf by:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei

EBZE

Director

BRH
Edwin Lo King Yau
BE

Director

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18th March, 2021 and
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REMBHRERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BPr —E_FFEFS - H=F—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020
31. DNEIBBEIRRR Mi#EEE) 31. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company (continued)

(b) AFIXFEEE=E (b) Movement in the Company’s reserves
BEEE R
Investment HRERF
revaluation Retained iam
reserve profits Total
FET FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
R-—Z—h&F—A—H At 1st January, 2019 4,904 157,706 162,610
FREEE(ER) WS Total comprehensive (expenses)
income for the year (4,904) 59,176 54,272
BT N\F2ZIRE Dividend relating to 2018 (Note 13)

(Kia£13) - (124,106) (124,106)
RZZ—AF+=A=+—H At31st December, 2019 - 92,776 92,776
FRLDHE R Total comprehensive income

for the year - 96,050 96,050
BR—Z—NFZRE Dividend relating to 2019

(Kia£13) (Note 13) - (31,026) (31,026)
[0 % K2 5 SHAOAR 19 Repurchase and cancellation of shares

(Kia£22) (Note 22) = (476) (476)

R-ZE-ZTF+=-F=+—H At31st December, 2020 - 157,324 157,324
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

(a) Principal subsidiaries

32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31st December, 2020 and 2019,
which operate in Hong Kong except otherwise indicated, are as follows:

FisREE AL

it/ sk BRITRE BRRFENR Percentage of attributable equity directly

Place of Particular of BELRERRH s50RE
4 Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the IERH
Name establishment  paid up registered capital Company Group Principal activities

2020 2019 2020 2019
% Y% Y% %
TABREBRAR i iS5 b - - 100 100 #ERE
Asia Empire Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK§1 Property investment
TEMEERAA B 1,000/ %% 10,000/ T 100 100 100 100 BtisaE
AsiaSec Finance Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/HK$10,000 Financing
GRMEREEERAR i AREBR 20T - - 100 100 #ERE
AsiaSec Project Management Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Property investment
DENEERERAT B 300,0008% & 3@k, - - 100 100 YEER
AsiaSec Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 300,000 7T Property management
300,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$300,000

ERREERAR Bk REBE 1R - - 100 100 HERE
Asiawell Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
BRREERAR Bk ARERE 2T - - 100 100 HERE
Citigrand Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Property investment
Creative Essence Investments Limited ~~ HB#RES  1RTBK100%ET 100 100 100 100 ®EER

British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD100 Investment holding
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FEMBERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BrE - E—FFEF = F—HIEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

2. BB AR MEBEERAFFE 32, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

(&) (continued)
(a) EEMEBAF(E) (a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)
FisREE AL

i,/ mai BRITRS BRRFENR Percentage of attributable equity directly

Place of Particular of BELARERRR 5055
4] Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the FERH
Name establishment  paid up registered capital Company Group Principal activities

2020 2019 2020 2019
% Y% Y% %
(B ERAR i AREBR 2B 100 100 100 100 RERR
Dan Form (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Investment holding
FHA (BB ) BRAR B 1,000,0008 % @/ 100 100 100 100 REER
Dan Form (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T Investment holding
1,000,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,000,000

Dawna Range Company Limited BE 2REBR, 208 T - - 100 100 REER

Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Investment holding
BRMEEEERAH G 1,000/ %% 10,000/ - - 100 100 HEER
Diamond Property Management Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/HK$10,000 Property management

Company Limited

ERRABRAR i 1B R - - 100 100 #ERE
Gold Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
ERBRAH i 10,0008 %3BA%, 10,0007 - - 100 100 #ERE
Harcape Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Ordinary shares/HK$10,000 Property investment
BEREBRAF EE 1,010,0008% %@/ - - 100 100 RERR
Keen Safe Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,010,000/ 7T Investment holding

1,010,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,010,000
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FEMBHERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B2 —E _ZTFEFf —H=4—HIFFE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

32. TEWBAR LEEANFFFIE 32, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

(&) (continued)
(a) EEMEBAF(E) (a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)
FisRER AL

it/ s BRITRE MERFHR Percentage of attributable equity directly

Place of Particular of BELFEERE s5ERR
4] Incorporation/ issued share capital/ held by the held by the FERH
Name establishment  paid up registered capital Company Group Principal activities

2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %

Kirshman Limited B 2L @R, 28T 100 100 100 100 AR

Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Investment holding
ENEIMERAR ERGREE  REBRET - = 100 100 MERE
Man Lee Offshore Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
REREBRAF EEARRE  REBR 1FER - - 100 100 MEkE
Oriental Dragon Investment Limited Briish Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
AERRARAF B ARERE2RTT - - 100 100 MEkE
Top Power Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Property investment
BRRAERAR &R IRERE AT - - 100 100 MEkE
Wide Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
REEUERRAR EEARRE  REBR 1FER - - 100 100 MEkE
Winshine Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
A EEHRBEERAT] FE 2,150,000%7 - - 100 100 MELRE

PRC USD2,150,000 Property investment

EFRINHTESFSRREIECEREE 2 XEENE  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion

ENMBAR - EERAREHMMNBEARNFE  of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To

HERSERFEERBE - give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

HERNFEWRBEIB A R BITEAESEES ° None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

AR 32
(b)
FEESEIM
M, R 3L

Principal place
of operation and

for the year ended 3 1st December, 2020

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

(continued)

Principal associates

FRisRRiET oLt
Percentage of

attributable equity directly

place of
218 incorporation/ FRERA FERD
Name establishment held by the Group Principal activities
2020 2019
% %
I REEFEEREBR QR GRICTPN 2 (Wiaz) (HfiE) BHEESD
Beijing Jingyuan Property Mainland China (Note) (Note)  In liquidation
Development Co., Ltd
TEERERR AR BB 50 50 IREER
Ho Pok Investment Hong Kong Investment holding
Company Limited
EEEXERAT] BB 50 50 WMEKRE
Kin Tong Land Investment Hong Kong Property investment
Company Limited
Zeta Estates Limited B 33.33 3333 WEBRRRMERE
Hong Kong Property development and

Arat - b REEEERE AR ARNEMFNESE

Hk o

property investment

Note: Beijing JingYuan Property Development Co., Ltd is in liquidation during both years.
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SEMESHIGE SUMMARY OF THE GROUP’'S
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
I —_TNEF —ET-N\F —ET—+F TR
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
FHEiT FET FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
A Revenue 51,251 55,944 58,454 60,004 55,493
iyl Operating profit 15,242 52,704 62,259 83,552 107,931
FE(EEE A A Share of (loss) profit of
(E18)m A associates (69,029) 8,967 56,302 99,051 (30,995)
KR AT (B8 ) 3 7l (Loss) profit before taxation (53,787) 61,671 118,561 182,603 76,936
i it Income tax expense (2,863) (3,657) (5,814) (13,438) (15,174)
AN E (1R ) & (Loss) profit for the year (56,650) 58,014 112,747 169,165 61,762
RN Attributable to:
A RS Equity holders (56,650) 58,014 112,747 169,165 61,762
Al JBN BN JENL JEN
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
TR (EE) BT (Loss) earnings per share (4.57) 4.67 9.08 13.62 497
BEE Total assets 4,544,502 4658964 4,714,880 4,894,582 5,405,183
BEE Total liabilities (198,583) (222,375) (205,730) (191,185) (314,853)
BEFE Net assets 4,345,919 4,436,589 4,509,150 4,703,397 5,090,330
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